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Financial Highlights

s EE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-RE —Z-1fF —Z-mF —Z-=f —E-CF
HKS$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEATL BEAET BEAT BEAT BEAT
Revenue g
- Semiconductor distribution —EESE 992.4 1,893.1 2,671.7 2,230.1 3,064.3
— Consumer electronic product sales - HBEETEMRHEE 4.7 628 69.7 100.8 86.0
- Others —Eft 2.9 18 25 36 233
1,037.0 1,957.7 2,749.9 2,3345 3,173.6
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, ~ BR7F 8 FE HE
amortisation and non-cash items BERIERSERR
w5,/ (B8)
- Corporate NG (25.9) (4.5 (8.5) 24.1 (20.7)
- Venture capital —8% (23.9) (38.3) 26.1 15.2 (5.9)
~ Semiconductor distribution ~FEENH 118.0 104.6 76.5 473 61.5
— Consumer electronic product sales - HERETEMHEE (3.9) (7.9) (7.8) (2.5) 73
- Others —Hfth (6.9) (12.9) (5.6) (2.9 (8.6)
57.9 41.0 80.7 81.2 336
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH (6.8) (10.8) (13.8) (14.9) (13.1)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to NTATEEREE
w55/ (B18)
— Owners of the Company —ARAEEA 2.1 (94.2) 34 92 24
— Non-controlling interests — IR - 29.3 9.7) (16.1) (1.9)
2.1 (64.9) (6.3) (6.9) 0.5
Dividends &)
— Interim —rh i - - - - 6.1
- Proposed final —BERE - - - 6.0 -
- - - 6.0 6.1
Dividends per share (HK cents) SRR E GBI
— Interim —rh i - - - - 1.0
— Proposed final —EEAH - - - 1.0 -
- - - 1.0 1.0
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Financial Highlights
I ER

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE —T-n¥  CEDmF —E-=f  CZECF
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$ ' million
BEAR BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Total assets BEBE 884.5 1,140.1 1,335.5 1,482.8 1,443.4
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 681.0 679.3 694.1 674.8 692.5
Total equity EmaE 657.6 654.2 668.7 647.2 634.7
Borrowings and finance lease payables EBRhENBERETE 137.2 350.8 511.4 536.3 579.0
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERRLIEE 69.6 131.7 87.8 87.0 166.5
Equity investments at fair value through EREREATERYER
profit or loss BRARE 73.0 89.2 199.1 186.2 1111
Cash and cash equivalents and ReRkZERREEEUK
equity investments BRARE 142.6 220.9 286.9 27322 277.6
Total debt to total equity BERABRRREE  LE 21% 54% 76% 83% 91%
Current assets to current liabilities MBEELRRBAFELE 147% 138% 152% 122% 127%
Cash and cash equivalents and equity BRESRERASEE
investments per share (HK$) URBRARE (BT) 0.18 0.29 0.40 0.45 0.46
Total equity per share (HKS) BlRE=EE (BL) 0.85 0.85 0.94 1.07 1.05
Revenue to property, plant and equipment (x) LW E  BE &
RELE () 255 46.1 51.9 196 242
Revenue to inventories (x) WREERLE (1) 15.0 133 10.5 6.7 10.7
Revenue to trade receivables (x) Yras RPEWE S8R
P () 16.2 93 125 104 17
Revenue to trade payables, deposits received U7 B fE 4B B ER -
and accrued expenses (x) Bl R
et EALE (fF) 16.6 187 209 8.1 15.0
Revenue to borrowings (x) s B E R (1) 7.6 56 54 4.4 55
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s

Statement

¥ fE BB




On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am honored to present the annual
results of AV Concept Holdings Limited (“AV Concept” or the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (the “year under review").

During the year under review, the Group's semiconductor distribution business
continued to enjoy economic benefits from the fast-growing global demand
of smartphones and handheld tablets and recorded satisfactory growth. For
the year ended 31 March 2016, profit attributable to owners of the Company
recorded a profit of HKD2.1 million (2015: loss of HKD94.2 million), the profit
turnaround was primarily due to the increase in share of profits from a joint
venture that is engaged in trading of Samsung electronics product and the
substantial decrease in fair value losses on equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss.

People’s Republic of China still remains the world’s largest smartphone market
and many manufacturers still see the world's second-largest economy as a big
growth driver for their business. However, China smartphone growth is slow
down due to market saturation, inventory buildup and economic headwinds
making the market situation more challenging. According to various statistics
firms and research companies, global smartphone shipment is seeing a decline
whereas China shipment remains flat. Yet as the core pillar of global economy,
we believe there is still huge development potential for China semiconductor
distribution business due to the relatively low penetration rate in low-tier
cities and high replacement needs within the territory. We are confident our
strategy on targeting low to mid-tier smartphone will still enjoy some healthy
growth in the near future bringing the Group satisfactory returns.

To welcome the new technology era, the Group also puts efforts in developing
other smartphone related businesses. The Group continues putting the effort
in game development during the year under review.

Chairman’s Statemth

Dr. So Yuk Kwan & 83918 +
Chairman &

AAERRERESTZMAMBRRIZZAV Concept Holdings
Limited ([AV Concept] 8k [AR 2 A]]) R EHE QA
(FBAEEDHEE-_ZS—"F=A=+—HLFE
(IEEFEl22F%E-

REEFEN AEERLEESEEBTA2IRES
BEFHRTFIREMOBIFE R MBEEREER-=F
—ANEZA=Z+—BLLEE ARAREEEEFES
B H| 52,100,000 7T ( —Z — F 4 : [£51894,200,000%
) EHEARBNIZRARARARRN —HRE=ESE
FEGEBHEELENFBOBENERLERIESR
BRAFEEIRZRARE SN QTEEEIERN KRR

o

TEARERLENDARERZANEEERZT S RS
RN R AP BEERERE —KEERE $SeREER
—KRIBREH AT FEREDETFHIZRRE AR
WIS EFER EEYEESTSTEE AL
Mo RIBEREIBRGE A RFARLQFNET - 2IRE 8L
FHREEHIS TR S BEERS T - AW (ER2IR
BRI RO R EmE T FR2ERRERER
FIRAFRERTREY  HIRATHEFERE SR
BERREEDNDAREX - ZFEFELRMBEHERAEF
MR TR DARESREER YAKEGEI BN
(o] 5 -

RMEF RN ARETR N EREMMEET HH
HEEB - ROBFEN AEEEETEHERE LS
NERE -
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Chairrrlan's Statement

Further, in view of the rising concern about quality living, we have directed
more resources into our consumer electronic product business which covers
high-tech gadgets, lifestyle goods and personal healthcare products. We are
glad the Group could leverage its existing semiconductor distribution network
to explore exciting opportunities within the consumer electronic product
industry for broader income source.

The Group has always been adopting prudent and practical development
strategies, by making good use of limited resources to develop potential
businesses for achieving satisfactory growth. In view of the changing
operating environment, the Group has been actively and flexibly adjusting its
business mix, operating and sales strategies as well as resource allocations
to further capitalise its business advantages and to better capture market
development trends. With the satisfactory results achieved from our three
business segments, we are confident in achieving steady business results by
making better use of existing resources to enhance the synergic effects among
various businesses for better shareholders’ returns.

To conclude, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to all our
stakeholders including our customers and business partners, who have
reposed great trust in us and in our products. | also thank all of our employees
for supporting us in our business and helping us grow further. Through our
commitment to excellence and the realisation of the Group’s comprehensive
strategies, | believe we will realise further successes and deliver satisfactory
returns to our shareholders.

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2016

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWmN D

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The following sets out the financial highlights for the year ended 31 March
2016, with the comparative figures for the corresponding financial year of

EBEBEAIR
TRBIBE-_T—

RNE=ZR=+—HIFEZ2#%
EH O ER-_Z-AFMRFERBZ BT -

2015.
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-hEF
HK$'million HK$ million
HEER BEET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BHEREER
Revenue V&3
Semiconductor distribution 38 B8 5 G 992.4 1,893.1
Consumer electronic product sales HERETERHES 41.7 62.8
Others HAth 2.9 1.8
1,037.0 1,957.7
Profit/{loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, BT T E - R
amortisation and non-cash items FEHE LA (EE)
Corporate NG (25.9) (4.5)
Venture capital 2% (23.4) (38.3)
Semiconductor distribution F B85 4 118.0 104.6
Consumer electronic product sales HERETEMIHE (3.9) (7.9)
Others E1 (6.9) (12.9)
57.9 41.0
Depreciation and amortisation TE R
Corporate NG (0.0) (0.0)
Venture capital Bl (0.5) (0.7)
Semiconductor distribution B 5 4 (4.4) (5.1
Consumer electronic product sales HEHSETEREE (0.0) 3.1
Others Hb (1.9) (1.9)
Total depreciation and amortisation PrE R m e (6.8) (10.8)
Profit/(loss) before interest and tax BRASRBEREF, (EE) 6.1 (41.4)
Interest expenses 2T (5.8) (8.6)
Bank interest income RITH B UA 0.4 0.2
Profit/(loss) before tax from SEICEESZ 5@ BiAT
continuing operations /fmf' / (E18) 0.7 (49.8)
Income tax Fri5 i 1.4 (0.6)
Profit/(loss) for the year from SEEEEBZFNRN
continuing operations mf'/(ﬁiﬂ@ 2.1 (50.4)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREER
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation B # IFA& & X 2 FNEE - (14.5)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmEA, (F8E) 2.1 (64.9)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: LA T/\iﬁﬁiﬁi REF (EE)
Owners of the Company PA/NSIE RN 2.1 (94.2)
Non-controlling interests IEERE - 29.3
21 (64.9)

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the reviewing period of the year ended 31 March 2016, global macro-
economic environment remained challenging. Rich countries are still struggling
to escape the legacies of the financial crisis whereas the People’s Republic of
China (“"China”), which continues to be the world’s spotlights, remained at
moderate growth. But the country’s overall slowdown and weak commodity
prices are continuously hurting the nearby emerging markets and its
deceleration and currency turbulence continues to hit trade partners around
the world. Global economy is keeping a close eye on impacts associated with
China’s persistent slow growth and are expecting more boosting measures
from China government.

According to the latest preliminary release from the International Data
Corporation Worldwide Quarterly Mobile Phone Tracker, vendors shipped a
total of 334.9 million smartphones worldwide in the first quarter of 2016, up
slightly from the 334.3 million units in the first quarter of 2015, marking the
smallest year-over-year growth on record. The minimal growth this quarter is
primarily attributed to strong smartphone saturation in developed markets as
well as China. As the China market matures, the appetite for smartphones
has slowed down accordingly as the explosion of uptake has passed its peak.
And yet in our view, China remains and will continue to be the focal point
of the global smartphone market for the foreseeable future. During the
year under review, the Group continued to record satisfactory results in the
semiconductor distribution business.

During the year under review, the Group's revenue from continuing operations
was HK$1,037.0 million (2015: HK$1,957.7 million), decreased by 47.0%.
Among which semiconductor distribution business recorded a turnover of
HK$992.4 million (2015: HK$1,893.1 million), consumer electronic business
recorded a revenue of HK$41.7 million (2015: HK$62.8 million) and mobile
application business recorded a revenue of HK$2.9 million (2015: HK$1.8
million). Gross profit from continuing operations was HK$26.1 million (2015:
HK$84.8 million).

Semiconductor Distribution Business

During the reviewing period, semiconductor distribution business recorded
a turnover of HK$992.4 million (2015: HK$1,893.1 million). The drop was
primarily due to the termination of the semiconductor distribution agreements
with Fairchild Semiconductor Hong Kong Limited and Fairchild Semiconductor
Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., to distribute semiconductors in China and Hong Kong
and in certain Southeast Asia countries (including Singapore) effective from
23 April 2015. The re-allocation of internal resources allows the Group to
focus on developing the joint venture of the Group, AVP Electronics Limited
and its subsidiaries ("AVPEL Group”), for AVPEL Group’s Samsung electronics
business with higher margins.

BEENWwN O

EBEE

RIE-—RFZA=ZT—HIFE 2REBLERER
DARBUB -BERERNEBHEHRSBEENY
8 MABEERERNBRESNS DAREFREENER-
1B r B8] ) 2 A B A N R B T m (B RS LE DT 15 K%
MEOR B TS MARENEN SRS RREFEL
REWESHH - 2REBERR LRI TP ENE
BREERAERIE  WHEFEBFESE SR

& S A
KB IE B

E IS S # # International Data CorplBiR 2 IREE
FHROSTNTRE  R2016FF—FF B FHEE
AN E S A3.349(E 50 B2015F B H)3.343B2 A
NE A ERERNNIRFRLEREHE -MEaE
EiH MRS REZR AN ETIS A LS FH
TSR BRER - fEE P B TIS A B - H 2 F#
B SN IR KE M Y = 16 HA T 36 T AR B IR 4B  SAT
EBRMER  REEATERORRGEERLAEIRE
FHRMESHEZ - NOBEFEN NEBEFXEESH

EBREDSSAMBNER-

ZE-RNFZAZTHIEFE AEEMNEEED
#%1,037,000,000% 7T ( —=F — A 4 :1,957,700,000/%
To)  TEA7.0% AR F RO HEBIRGEXTEE
992,400,000 7T (= ZF—H % : 1,893,100,000/%& 7T ) *
HEBRE T EMEBESGE E5ER41,700,0008 7T (=
T —h % 62,800,000 70 ) BB fE R £ B G &
%8 /52,900,000 7T (= Z — F 4 : 1,800,000 7T ) °
SIE QB AT EF 526,100,0008 T (Z T —FHF -
84,800,000 7T ) °

FERSHEEL

Bl B8R A - S BB ) §H 3 15 8115 & 3£ %1 8992,400,000
B (ZZET—FF:1,893,100,0008 L) FTEKER
TESEEEHEREERREY B ESD RFairchild
Semiconductor Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd 3B &0 - 42 [F EE B A
BREBARRETREDER (BEHMNE) 2FE
BoEmE BT —RAFNAZF=HBER - AR
BREFALRBMNEEEIBEREORE NS EDE
AEBRAFAREFAG(AEIZ=EFFEK-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWmN O

During the reviewing period, turnover of AVPEL Group was not consolidated
in the Group's consolidated financial statements and recorded a 118%
surge in turnover to HK$15,357 million (2015: HK$7,050 million). The
revenue growth is mainly contributed by Samsung electronics products under
distribution including multi-chip packages and CMOS images sensors. With
the increase in share of profits from AVPEL Group during the reporting period,
profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$2.1 million (2015: loss of
HK$94.2 million) was recorded in current year.

As most Chinese smartphone makers are still grappling with escalating
competition in both China and abroad, there is still room for development for
mid to low-tier smartphones given the relatively low smartphone penetration
rate within the territory. Thanks to the foresight of management, the entry
into the lower-tier smartphone markets for the semiconductor distribution
business has become an important revenue generator for the year under
review. The Group will continue focusing on exploring China semiconductor
distribution business.

Consumer Electronic Product Business

During the year under review, consumer electronic product business recorded
a turnover of HK$41.7 million (2015: HK$62.8 million). The Group believed
the world has entered a new transformative era for healthcare and highly
personalised digital products. With modern technology is enabling the
industry to connect to, care for and engage with the community in a profound
new way, the Group is hoping to, by leveraging its existing electronic
distribution network to explore exciting opportunities within the consumer
electronic product industry for broader income source. During the year
under review, the Group has brought in numerous new brands and products
from personal gadgets, high-tech products to lifestyle goods which further
expanded the existing product diversity and broadened the income source.

Mobile Application Business

During the reviewing period, the turnover for mobile application business was
HK$2.9 million (2015: HK$1.8 million) with contributions from the steadily
developing Koocell Limited (“Koocell”). After the rearrangement of business
into two separate lines and entities, namely, mobile applications and online
advertising as well as game development in May 2015, Koocell continued
to grow healthily and its first mobile puzzle RPG Three Kingdoms related
mobile game was called “Tales of Three Kingdoms”. The next upcoming
“GGO Football” which is created based on an animation cartoon series “GGO
Football” in China. According to iiMedia Research, for the year 2015, the
total market size for China mobile games reached RMB41.5 billion with total
number of gamers over 500 million. The mobile games market experienced
exponential growth since 2012 but the growth in the space has probably
peaked. Yet with the popularity of Tales of Three Kingdoms, we believe the
business growth remains healthy and sustainable despite the changing market
situation. More mobile games and contents are in the pipeline to launch in the
coming years.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
12 Annual Report 2016 &%

CESAN RAETESAHIAEENHHRE Hit
82 % %% 515,357,000,0008 L (=T —FHF:
7,050,000,000/ 7T ) * KIBIE R 49118% W RE B
XERDH=EEF2EREHR R R GRERSE-
BEERBEHARERENTEOCENER AFEZ
AR A AFESAFIE£152,100,0008 L (ZE—F
F 1 §51894,200,000/8 7T ) °

B R 2 8P B A B T M BUE B D AR R B A B SN
B AmsFEr iR PREERNESEFHRE REAY
R P Em BT RMSNAR —ENER=H-
EAHEEREMER ZH BHRERS TR
DEEBCRRRBEFEAN —EEERARR A%
EHEEE TN RRPEFBEOHEER-

HEBEEEFERER

EIEEEAA - JH B E 1 & M5 % ¥ 5 /541,700,000
T (ZZF—H%F 162,800,000 70) - EEIEEEHKIEN
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FHERER

F 1 e R S 7% 50 [0 B &5 N B & 358 /52,900,0000% 7T
(ZZ—HF 1,800,000/ 7C)  ERLE Z KRB BT
K #Koocell Limited ([Koocell ]) e 82015958 & %&
KoocellZ R EEK AMEBUEBRER SR AF
e pE FA T2 = R 4R b BB 45 LA T2 05 85 5 35 1% © Koocell4 48
RFEERIT N E EPuzzlefE B KRPG— (ZH &) &
BEF MBI ERSERE - Bl H#H A [ GGO Football
TEMEBRARE 2 RBMNE (BEERR) < RE
PRI E) BB AT X B T & L (iMedia
Research)&{E 78/ » & 1F20155F » Fp B F # #58L  45 A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

To diversify business risk as well as in view of the higher mobile penetration
and fast growing mobile advertising market, in October 2015, Koocell
introduced AdlLocus, a Location-Based Service push-based mobile advertising
platform developed by Taiwan’s HyXen Technology Co., Ltd. ("HyXen
Technology”) and became the platform’s exclusive agent for Hong Kong.
This innovative and leading technology will turn a brand new page for Hong
Kong mobile advertising market. AdLocus’ unique push notification allows
mobile users to instantly receive advertisements upon entering the designated
areas without the need of activating any mobile applications with advantages
including more specific audience targeting, higher users’ privacy and more
effective advertising in terms of scale and costs. Digital advertising spending
in Hong Kong is forecast to overtake expenditure on traditional media
campaigns in the next few years, despite a lingering economic slowdown.

Venture Capital Business

As of 31 March 2016, various funds, equity investments and debt securities
were held at fair market value of HK$72,994,000 (31 March 2015:
HK$89,164,000) in the Group. During the period under review, as compared
to same period last year, the venture capital business of the Group recorded
a fair value loss on equity investments of HK$18.3 million (2015: HK$50.2
million). During the year under review ended 31 March 2016, the Group
retained 14.24% equity interest in IE Limited (previously known as “Integrated
Energy Limited”). The management cautiously monitored the Venture
Capital Business by reference to the world financial markets. Although
global economy is volatile with uncertainties ahead, the Group will strive for
satisfactory results for its venture capital business.

Prospect

During the year under review, the global smartphone market has gone
flat with the growth in China stagnated. While the overall market may be
depressed, the intensifying competition within China market still managed
to give a mild push on new launches of mid to low-end products with
advanced performances, which in turn supported the demand for the
associated semiconductors. In view of the continued success of the Group's
semiconductor distribution business, we are confident the Group will continue
to enjoy the economic benefits from the growing smartphone market and we
expect stable growth in the recorded revenue in the coming years.

As mentioned earlier, the higher penetration of smartphone handsets,
regardless of specifications and categories, has led to the continuous
development of handsets related games and applications bringing the Group
more business opportunities. After the business realignment of Koocell earlier
this year, the Group has been working to focus resources on two major areas
namely online advertising and game development. With the mobile business
platform getting more established, the Group aims to launch more popular
games for bringing satisfactory business results in the near future, and to
achieve further success in its first attempt in mobile advertising for increasing
clients” media exposure with more networking opportunities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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While semiconductor distribution business continued to be the business driver
and mobile business to bring the growth momentum, the Group is, on the
other hand, actively seeking ways to further expand its consumer electronic
product business, which enjoys synergic effects in terms of distribution
network and sales force. Despite the economic turbulence, the Group believes
functional personal gadgets and durable home electrical appliances are
relatively less susceptible to market changes. The Group is hoping to further
invest into its consumer electronic product business in the coming future for
sustainable business continuity.

The Group, by leveraging its leading position, goodwill and competitive
advantage gained through its 20 years plus market track record, will continue
to adopt prudent and practical development strategies, and by making good
use of limited resources to develop various business segments for achieving
sustainable growth and bringing satisfactory returns to shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total debt position as at 31 March 2016 and the corresponding gearing
ratio are shown as follows:

RELOEOHEBEUENAEEERONER T
FHEREBAAPGRIERNE S - EEEEEUE—
FRABEHRETEMEBUZIDHARRHEER
B 8 15 [R) 2% R - BSR4 B 35 M B - =R E T AE 1L M
ANEFE m M & KA E 2R E R IR E ) Sk A
HAGRMGE T E SEPLEREFRENEER
EBFEMEBUNEERENEFIUFELER -

El%%}&i? TEENTSHL R BERE
REGE BESTHRERBENERER ARUEM
ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%?&)ﬁyniﬁ B A RT3 R I AR
SRR B B3R o

RBETRYBEIR

RIZE-REZA=+—HZEBRERRALERE
REEHLEWNT:

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hE

HKS$'million HK$ million

HEER BEET

Cash and cash equivalents RekERBELIER 69.6 131.7

Equity investments at fair value through FRBHIEAFEBEYEREZ

profit or loss fRAI& & 73.0 89.2
Cash and cash equivalents and REFFRBEEE RRAKE

equity investments 142.6 220.9

Borrowings and finance lease payables BRRENREHERIE 137.2 350.8

Total equity REmiaR 657.6 654.2

Total debt to total equity B ARERER AR LR 21% 54%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents (i.e., cash
and bank balances, deposits with other financial institutions and unpledged
time deposits) of HK$69.6 million (2015: HK$131.7 million), while the
Group's equity investments at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
HK$73.0 million (2015: HK$89.2 million). The equity investments included a
balanced mix of fixed income, equity and alternative investments and such
amount represented the cash reserves held for the Group’s medium to long
term business development and would form an integral part of the Group's
treasury.

The total debt to total equity ratio as at 31 March 2016 was 21% (2015:
54%), while the Group’s total equity as at 31 March 2016 was HK$657.6
million (2015: HK$654.2 million), with the total balances of cash and cash
equivalents and equity investments as at 31 March 2016 of HK$142.6 million
(2015: HK$220.9 million).

BEENWwN O
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The working capital position of the Group remains healthy. As at 31 March A& @ > EEE S AR D IDABHE- T—-RF=
2016, the liquidity ratio was 147% (2015: 138%). R=+—H RHESHE 2%147% (_ = —hF:
138% ) °

2016 2015

— R —HF

HK$'million HK$ million

BEBT BEATT

Current assets MENEE 298.2 633.7
Current liabilities ViR (203.5) (460.9)
Net current assets MEVEEFE 94.7 172.8
Current assets to current liabilities MBEERRBAEGE X 147% 138%
Management is confident that the Group follows a prudent policy in EEEBHE AEEERFEZEERFEEELFEKE I

managing its treasury position, and maintains a high level of liquidity to ensure
that the Group is well placed to take advantage of growth opportunities for
the business.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs cost in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider
the impact of foreign exchange exposure of the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of contingent liabilities are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group employed a total of approximately 192 (31
March 2015: approximately 229) full-time employees. The Group recruits and
promotes individuals based on merit and their development potentials for
the positions offered. Remuneration package is determined with reference to
their performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market. In addition,
the Group operates share option schemes for eligible employees to provide
incentive to the participants for their contribution and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of the Group. Share options and discretionary bonuses
are granted based on the Group's and individual’s performances.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (“Dr. So”), aged 66, is the founder, Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company. Dr. So is the father of Mr. So Chi On, Mr. So Kevin Chi
Heng and Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny. In the early 1980’s, he founded AV Concept
Limited. Dr. So is primarily responsible for overall business strategies and
business development to the Company. Dr. So has over 40 years of experience
in the electronics industry. Under his leadership, AV Concept achieved
remarkable results in the sales and marketing of semiconductors contributing
to the appointment by Samsung Electronics as its distributor since 1982. In
1989, AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. was established to develop its electronic
business in Singapore, South-east Asia countries and subsequently expanded
to the market in the People’s Republic of China through vertical integration
in early 90’s. In April 1996, AV Concept Holdings Limited listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group continuously
received numerous awards, including Samsung Electronics’s “Best Performance
Award"” in recognition of the excellent sales and marketing performance as well
as contribution to cultivate strong customers relationship in the semiconductors
market.

Dr. So holds an honorary degree, Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the International American University and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of East Asia (now
known as University of Macau) and he is also a Fellow Member of the British
Institute of Management. Presently, he is the Vice Chairman of the Executive
Committee and the Chairman of HKEIA Education Fund of The Hong Kong
Electronic Industries Association. Dr. So is also the Vice President of The Hong
Kong Semiconductor Industry Council. Further, Dr. So is a Fellow Member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Honorary Chairman of Advisory
Committee (Industry) of Cooperative Education Centre of City University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. So Chi On (“Mr. So"), aged 39, is the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. So is responsible for the overall
corporate strategies and operation of the Group. Mr. So joined the Group in
1999 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in March
2001. Mr. So has over 17 years of experience in corporate and financial
management. Mr. So holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from
the University of Wisconsin Madison. Mr. So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr. So Kevin Chi
Heng and Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny, Executive Directors of the Company.

Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (“Mr. Kevin So”), aged 30, is the Chief Operation
Officer and Executive Director of the Company responsible for operation
of the Group and AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd.. Mr. Kevin So joined the
Group in 2011 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in November 2015. Mr. Kevin So obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
(major in Management) from Bentley College in May 2008 and a Master of
Business Administration degree from Bentley University in February 2010.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kevin So had pursued a career in corporate
finance in an international financial institution. Mr. Kevin So is the son of Dr.
So, Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company, the brother of Mr.
So, Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company and the
brother of Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny, an Executive Director of the Company.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny (“Mr. Sunny So”), aged 28, is the Executive Director
of the Company, the vice president and chief executive officer of Koocell
Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which is
principally engaged in mobile applications business and online advertising.
Mr. Sunny So joined the Group in 2011 and was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in November 2015. Mr. Sunny So obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree (major in Graphic Design) from Northeastern
University in January 2011. Mr. Sunny So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman and
an Executive Director of the Company, the brother of Mr. So, Chief Executive
Officer and an Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr.
Kevin So, an Executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP, aged 78, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 1996. Dr. Lui is an established industrialist. Dr.
Lui was a member of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR between 1998
— 2008 and also a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He is now an Honorary Chairman of The Chinese Manufacturers
Association of Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association
and The Hong Kong Shandong Chamber of Commerce. In addition, he is also
an Advisor of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre and a member
of the Hong Kong Economic Development Commission. Dr. Lui obtained a
Master Degree in Applied Science from the University of New South Wales in
Australia and a Doctorate in Engineering from the University of Saskatchewan
in Canada. He is currently the Managing Director of Keystone Electronics Co.
Ltd..

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman, aged 67, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2000. He was Executive Director
of the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association (HKEIA) and Managing
Director of the HKEIA's subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong
Electronics Promotions Ltd. from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired.
Currently, Mr. Chapman is an Independent Non-executive Director of Mobicon
Group Limited and he is also a Senior Industry Consultant for a number
of overseas-based trade fair organisers. Prior to joining the HKEIA, Mr.
Chapman worked for 12 years as Economics Editor at the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council and for 8 years as Business Editor in a local English-
language newspaper.

Mr. Wong Ka Kit, aged 39, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Wong is the Senior Vice
President, Mergers and Acquisitions of a Hong Kong listed property company.
Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Finance and Economics
from the University of Wisconsin Madison.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Joon Yun, aged 52, was appointed as the President and Chief
Executive Officer of AV Concept Limited, a subsidiary of the Company from
2006-2011. Mr. Choi currently is the President and Chief Executive Officer
of AVP Electronics Limited, a joint venture of the Group since January 2012.
Mr. Choi has over 27 years of experience in Sales and Marketing. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Choi was the Sales and Marketing Director of Samsung
Electronics Co., Ltd. (Shanghai), and the Sales and Marketing Senior Manager
of Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong and Shenzhen). He had also
been working for Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Semiconductor Business) as
Sales and Marketing Manager for Asian market.

Mr. Chan Chi Hang, aged 39, was appointed as the Company Secretary
and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since August 2015. Mr. Chan
has extensive experience in accounting and auditing, and is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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The Directors of the Company present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group consist of the marketing and distribution of electronic
components, the design, development and sale of electronic products, and
venture capital investment.

Further discussion and analysis of business review as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group's business, can be found in the Chairman'’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 16
of this annual report. The above discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the Company, as assisted by the audit committee of the
Company, oversees the Group's internal control and risk management system,
and conducts periodic reviews of such system to ensure good corporate
governance practice. The supervision process and outcome of the latest review
is set out in more detail in the section headed “Internal Control” in corporate
governance report in this annual report. The following is a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group. The management of the
Company meets periodically to discuss these risks, and where appropriate,
will monitor the situation closely and adopt any necessary risk mitigation
measures.

Industry risk

The sale and distribution of electronic components and design, development
and sales of electronic products are sensitive to technology change. The
industry is also subject to rapidly changing market trends and intense
competition amongst different players. This may materially and adversely
affect the Group's business performance. To maintain competitiveness, the
management of the Company will meet regularly to update the technology
change and the industry environment.

Economy risk

The performance of the Group is affected by the overall economy growth,
especially in the electronic components market. If the economy slows down,
it is highly likely that the demand for electronic components may be reduced.
Any continued economic slowdown or recession may result in a decrease in
sales, and may lead to a material adverse effect on the Group's business and
results of operations.
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Financial risk

Credit risk

To minimise credit risk, the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure there
is follow-up action to recover overdue debts. The Group also reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Board therefore considers that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents which
it deems adequate to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of cash flow fluctuations.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to risk of changes in market interest rates related
primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating
interest rates. It does not currently has any interest rate hedging policy, but
closely monitors its exposure to interest rate risk due to changes in market
rates and will consider hedging changes should the need arise.

Market price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The management of the Company monitors the changes
of securities prices and may change the investment portfolio held if needed.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it engages. The Group strives to minimise its
impact on the environment by reducing its use of electricity and water and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group has
complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and employment.

Compliance with the laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations. During the year under review, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group during
the year under review.
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Relationship with employees, clients, suppliers and other
stakeholders

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on the
support from its key stakeholders, including employees, clients, suppliers,
banks, regulators and shareholders. During the year under review, there
were no material and significant disputes between the Group and its key
stakeholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 46 to 171 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the
year (2015: Nil) and propose that the profit from for year be retained.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options are set out in notes
30 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2016, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$364,063,000. The share premium of the
Company is available for distribution or paying dividends to the shareholders
provided that immediately following the distribution or the payment of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below.
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RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HILEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“g-x% ZE-RF ZEFPmF ZTF-=F 0 ZTCF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAL THL FET THL
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FELSEER
REVENUE Wi 1,037,023 1,957,690 2,749,902 2,334,475 3,173,592
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BEAER (FB) 757 (49,839) 53,888 52,301 2,241
Income tax FiieH 1,389 (564) (210) (3,369) (4,756)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ERER/ (HB) 2,146 (50,403) 53,678 48,933 (2,515)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION CRIEEEERK
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRIEEEER 2ER
a discontinued operation wHl/ (E8) - (14,538) (60,023) (55,811) 3,000
2,146 (64,941) (6,345) (6,878) 485
Attributable to: MTALRER:
Owners of the Company KARHEBA 2,147 (94,287) 3,353 9,237 2,416
Non-controlling interests R ER (1) 29,346 (9,698) (16,115) (1,931)
2,146 (64,941) (6,345) (6,878) 485
Assets and liabilities EERERE
As at 31 March
R=B=1+-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
~g-nF ZE-RF ZF-REF ZF-ZF ZTCF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR FAR FET FAET THL
TOTAL ASSETS BEHAE 884,514 1,140,104 1,335,459 1,482,833 1,443,422
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAE (226,952) (485,938) (666,306) (835,606) (808,730)
657,562 654,166 668,653 647,227 634,692
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. So Chi On (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng
(Chief Operation Officer, appointed on 2 November 2015)

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny (appointed on 2 November 2015)

Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher (Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary, resigned on 31 August 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman

Mr. Wong Ka Kit

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah (“Dr. Lui"”),
SBS, JP, Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
and considers the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group as at the date
of this annual report are set out on pages 17 to 20 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, and approved by the board of Directors (the “Board”), as
authorised by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regard to their skills, knowledge and involvement in the Company's
affairs. No Directors are involved in deciding their own remuneration.

We offer competitive remuneration package, including medical and retirement
benefits, to eligible employees. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors
and employees are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into
account factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s
performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the eligible employees, including the
Directors, the Company and a subsidiary have adopted share option schemes.
The schemes enable the eligible persons to obtain an ownership interest in the
Company and that subsidiary and thus will motivate them to optimise their
continuing contributions to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which any of the Company's
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in the Listing Rules,
are as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company
(@) Interests in shares of the Company

Directors’ Report
EEEWE

EERRESTRABRKRG RABRA
2R

R-Z—RE=A=+—0 BERARASSTRA
ERAATREATAE (F5 BEA R IEHIEXV
) 2 A RABRIAR 3 A AL TR IS B S RIS
BlEE35216 2 MR AT R 2 BRMAT e #5 %
R AR LT RTA B ERITEERT SIS
#FR| ((EEFA ) AR TOEAATREBBA R
SHAERAT (XA 2 EmmT

RERXTARG ZHFR
(@) REQARDzER

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Nature of interest shares of interest in the
Name of Director and chief executive and capacity the Company issued shares
ERTROES
BEERBRITHRABHE ERMERSH AREEBRHE BABE D
Dr. So Corporate interest 238,796,189
Frig+ RAES
Beneficial owner 13,480,000 32.64%
EmEA A (Note 1)
(PFEET)
Dr. Lui, SBS, JP Beneficial owner 5,100,000 0.66%
BiEE s AFat EmAA (Note 2)
Interest of spouse (HMi=%2)
B i 2 #E
Notes: Bt 3 -
1. These shares include (i) 158,156,300 shares held by B.K.S. Company Limited 1. ZER DA FEG)AB.K.S. Company Limited

("BKS"); (i) 80,639,889 shares held by Jade Concept Limited (“Jade Concept”);
and (iii) 13,480,000 shares held by Dr. So as beneficial owner. Dr. So is deemed
to be interested in 238,796,189 shares by virtue of his interests in BKS and
Jade Concept, the particulars are more fully described in the section headed
“Interests of Substantial Shareholders” below.

2. This represents the total number of shares held by the spouse of Dr. Lui, SBS,
JP. By Virtue of the SFO, Dr. Lui, SBS, JP is deemed to be interested in 5,100,000
shares of the Company.

([BKSJ)# 48 2158,156,3000 i 15 : (i)
Jade Concept Limited ([Jade Concept])#5 2
80,639,889/ A% 17 ¢ K (iiFRETE - (EAEXHS
A) R 213,480,0000% 1% 17 o 1R #5 #k 18 - 7EBKS
JJade Conceptz #Ems » 1% %15 /372238,796,189
AP ERED AREABR T EZRE Y
Wi | — i — P aale

2. ZERMIEREEL B ATHEZREBIFEZ
B in s 8- IRIREH RS GG 21818 &
T+ AR BTA5,100,0000% 78 A 7 R& (5 7 A fE

5o
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(b) Interests in underlying shares of the Company

(b) REDRHEBERGER

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares of interest in
and chief executive and capacity the Company the Company
¥ /N AR EE
EERBESTRAEBHSR EREER S G ZTERHAE BMAOBDE
Dr. So Yuk Kwan Beneficial owner 600,000 (Note) 0.08%
#EHE L BB A (B&E)
Note: MiEE:

These underlying shares in the Company represent interest in the share
options granted to Dr. So pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company.

() Interests in underlying shares of associated corporations of
the Company

ARRAFZ %SRRI FERIBEA R B FIRA 2B
MRERT B T AR S L 2 BB -

(0 RAQXAEBEZEABERD 2ER

Approximate

Name of Number of percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest associated ordinary shares of interest in

and chief executive and capacity Corporations associated corporations associated corporations

M LE B EEER

ESRBRTRABHE BEMERSH HEiEER EBRHE L ER

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny Beneficial owner Koocell Limited 220,000 (Note) 30.98%
BELrE EnfBEA (PE)

Note: FfsE :

These underlying shares in Koocell Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
represent interest in the share options granted to Mr. Sunny So pursuant to the
share option scheme adopted by Koocell Limited.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company and
a subsidiary of the Company are separately disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company had registered any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and in the share option schemes
disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2016, the following substantial shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more
in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:
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BIEERETHRABSRBM RAAMAN 2 #xs] —
BT R R B AR S M B MR I T3 PR B8 2 B8 R T
O BEENFRAEARRARENEEARESE 2R
BHARKRFFRHETAEBEARRA RO KESHTE
BRlE N FETRETEZSEN: MARAR
EALAIH @ R R S BT A 2 B BEESRA
PR EAE AN B B ESZ SR -

FERRZER

RZE—REZAZ+—"H UTZEERF(EER
RARZEEITTBRABRIN RARARRG FHEAREE
H R IKEGIE3361& 2 RTEATRFT 2B LML
Z5%3R A RS

Long position in the shares of the Company REATRGZHER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of shareholder Nature of capacity shares held issued shares
ERTROER
BRREB R S E FERGEE BABRDL
BKS Beneficial owner 158,156,300 (Note 1) 20,46%
EnEAA (HEEED)
Jade Concept Beneficial owner 80,639,889 (Note 2) 10.43%
EnEAA (ME2)
Koh Business Groups Pte. Ltd. Beneficial owner 61,836,000 8.00%
ERBEBA
Madam Yeung Kit Ling (“Madam Yeung”) Interest of spouse 252,876,189 (Note 3) 32.72%
HRR AL ([HrL]) Bz s (H45E3)
Notes: B 5 -
1. BKS is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to be 1. BKSHI# B L B R - RIFEF R ATIKD - #RiE 4

interested in 158,556,300 shares of the Company held by BKS.

2. Jade Concept is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to
be interested in 80,639,889 shares of the Company held by Jade Concept.

3. As Madam Yeung is the spouse of Dr. So, by virtue of the SFO, she is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by BKS and Jade Concept in which Dr. So
has interest and 13,480,000 shares and 600,000 share options held by Dr. So.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Company has not been
notified by any person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out above) having interests
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be notified to the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or which are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

1R AR BKSH A 2 158,556,30008 AN A AR D R A 12k

2. Jade ConceptB & 1B T Em A - RIBEFH LB KM -
#r 1 T1AR A5 Jade Conceptt A 280,639,8890% 24 A 7]
R A A A o

3. ARG Z T REELT ZES  BURKREF RS KN - &
AR B A R 18 T A 125 2 BKS M Jade ConceptiF B 2 7K
AR K gk 1S 458 213,480,0008% A% 15 52.600,00017
PRI A i o

B EXFEREEN R-E—RF=ZA=1+—08 4A2n
R EEREEMALSEE (EERARFZHITHRA
BB HEZBAEN L) BN RREERAR
AR R ARRA AR 00 T A RIERE 75 R IR RO B XVER
BRMGARREARFRIERZFMHAEEIE3365Z
REBTREFELZERMATACHE 2 -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements is subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements of the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company and a subsidiary of the Company operate share option schemes
(the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operation.
Further details of the Schemes are disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions amounting to
HK$365,000 (2015: HK$483,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 28% of the Group's total sales for the year and sales to
the largest customer included therein amounted to approximately 13%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers for the year accounted for
approximately 91% of the Group's total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 72%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) were considered to have an interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group, other than those businesses of which the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares were held by the public during the year ended 31 March 2016
and as at the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existing during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year under review and as at the date of this report, an indemnity
provision was in force. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 33 to 42 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of financial assistance to, and
(where applicable) guarantee given for the loan facilities granted to, affiliated
companies of the Company, exceeds 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07 (1) of the Listing Rules. In compliance with the requirement
of Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial
position of the affiliated companies (with attributable interest of the Group in
the affiliated companies) as at the latest applicable date is set out below:
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Group’s

Combined statement attributable

of financial position interest

EOEBRR R AEEELER

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT FAET

Non-current assets IERBEE 27,076 20,307
Current assets mBEE 2,962,855 2,222,141
Current liabilities mEEE (2,508,497) (1,881,373)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (142) (106)
481,292 360,969

Share capital [ 120,000 90,000
Reserves ] 356,382 267,287
Non-controlling interests FEfE R T 4,910 3,682
481,292 360,969

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD WERREE

Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Reference is made to the annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2015 (“Annual Report 2015") published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company on 15 July 2015. As disclosed in
note 33 to the Notes to Financial Statements in the Annual Report 2015,
on 19 December 2014, the Company and Koh Business Groups Pte. Ltd.
("Subscriber”), an independent third party, entered into a share subscription
agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and the
Subscriber agreed to subscribe for 61,836,000 shares at a price of HK$0.401
per share (“Koh Subscription”). Completion of the Koh Subscription took
place on 31 December 2014 whereby 61,836,000 shares were issued and
total proceeds of HK$24,796,000 (before issuance expenses) was received by
the Company.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2014,
the subscription price of HK$0.401 per subscription Share represented (1) a
discount of approximately 17.32% to the closing price of HK$0.485 per share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 19 December 2014, being the date
of the relevant subscription agreement; and (2) a discount of approximately
19.96% to the average closing price per share of approximately HK$0.501 as
quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five consecutive trading days up to
and including 18 December 2014, being the last trading day prior to the date
of the relevant subscription agreement.

The Directors considered that the Koh Subscription provided the Company
with an opportunity to enhance its shareholders’ base and raise additional
funds for the Group and the Company understood that the Koh Subscription
would bring in the Subscriber, an independent third party principally
engaged in distribution of electronic components, as a strategic investor of
the Company. The net issue price per subscription Share was approximately
HK$0.398. The net proceeds of approximately HK$24.59 million from the Koh
Subscription were intended to be used as the Group’s general working capital
and the proceeds were used as intended.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 June 2016
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Group is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
and enhance its transparency and corporate value. The Group believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework between the Board and the
shareholders so as to enhancing shareholders’ interest and value as a whole.
The Board continually reviews and improves its corporate governance practices
to ensure the Company keeps abreast of the expectation of shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”).

The purpose of this report is to provide Shareholders with information on
the major principles and corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has applied the
major principles with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance and Corporate Governance Report (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Further details of the Company’s corporate governance practices will be
described in the following sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board should assure responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company and its subsidiaries affairs.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the formulation of the
Group's business objectives and strategies. Matters reserved for the Board
are those affecting the Group's overall strategic policies, finance and risk
management. The senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group directed by leadership of the Executive Directors. To
this end, the senior management has to implement, manage and monitor
the business plans, internal controls and corporate governance practices
developed by the Board.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.

As at 31 March 2016, the Board comprised four Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs
to be independent. Having the INEDs in the Board ensure that independent
judgment is exercised and that a proper balance of power is maintained
for full and effective control of the Group and its executive management.
The Directors believe that the existing Board composition reflects the
Company’s respect for high standards of business conduct commonly
adopted by multinational enterprises. The INEDs perform an important role in
safeguarding the Shareholders’ interests.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
(which include an assessment of the skills, knowledge and experience of the
existing Directors and suitable candidates) and for formulating procedures
for appointment of its own members and for nominating them for election
by the Shareholders on the first appointment and thereafter at regular
intervals through the retirement by rotation process pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for specific term and has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of one year, which
shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving
the other not less than three months’ notice in writing. All the Directors
are subjected to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Dr. So and Mr. Charles Edward Chapman will retire from the office by rotation
and are being eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The Board has assessed the independence of Mr.
Charles Edward Chapman who has met the independence guidelines set
out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. He has given an annual confirmation
concerning his independence to the Company. The Board, therefore, considers
him to be independent. Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng and Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny will
retire from the office pursuant to the Article 95 of the Articles of Association
of the Company and being eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The position of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ") are
held by separate individuals. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce
their independence and accountability and responsibility.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and overseeing the
functioning of the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Chairman determines
that the Board is provided with direction and sufficient consultation for the
Directors in effectively discharging their responsibilities for different aspects of
the business.

The CEO, supported by senior management, are responsible for
implementation of corporate goals, business strategies and policies resolved by
the Board from time to time. The CEO assumes full accountability to the Board
in respect of the Group's operations and development.

Save as Dr. So, the Chairman, is the father of Mr. So, the CEO, Mr. Kevin So,
the Chief Operation Officer, and Mr. Sunny So, there is no relationship among
members of the Board.

Board Meetings

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at about quarterly interval. The
senior management of the Group from time to time reports to the Directors
information on the activities and development of the Group’s business. In
addition, the Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

The attendance record of regular four board meetings held during the year is
set out below:
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BETRNEEREAHUAREER R LER
BRI ERF BN EEZ —ER LRR
ERREREEHABLEEER

FRABTZHAEREFEER 2 HELHEIIN
T

Attendance/ eRHE
Name of Directors Number of meetings EEHH BITRY
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman) 44 wmEHEL (FE) 4/4
Mr. So Chi On (Chief Executive Officer) 44 BBREE (TTHAEZ) 4/4
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (Chief Operation Officer, 11 BRBIELE (ZEEH R-F—AF 11
appointed on 2 November 2015) +—AZHEZ(F)
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny 171 EBRESRE (R=ZF—AF il
(appointed on 2 November 2015) +—AZHEZT)
Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher 22 {IBRE4E 2/2
(Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, (B BREEFR N FWNE -
resigned on 31 August 2015) REZFE—nFNNA=14—HFF)
Independent Non-executive Directors HUINTEE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp 3/4 ERAZETE 4 sBs - AP 4L 3/4
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 4/4  Charles Edward Chapman’t 4 4/4
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 44 BREFAE 4/4
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Board Committees

As at the date of the report, there were four Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee in operation and each one of
them was established with specific terms of references to assist the Board
discharging its responsibilities and maintaining proper internal controls and to
promote good corporate governance as a whole.

Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (the Chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include (i) to discuss with the
external auditors before the audit commence, the nature and scope of
the audit and confirm their independence and objectivity; (ii) to review the
Group'’s financial information before submission to the Board; (iii) to review
the Group's financial reporting system and the effectiveness of the audit
process with internal control procedure; and (iv) to review external auditors’
management letter and the relationship with the Group.

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year to review the interim results and the
final results of the Company.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the Group's audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the interim results for
the six months ended 30 September 2015. The Audit Committee had also
reviewed and discussed with the management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters including the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings held during the year
is set out below.
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Name of Attendance/ eRLE
Audit Committee Members Number of meetings BRZEEREUSR HBITRY
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 12 EBREEL s AR+ (F/F) 172
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 2/2  Charles Edward Chapman’t & 2/2
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 22 EREGRE 212
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2016, the Remuneration Committee consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBs, JP and the other members include Mr. Charles
Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit. One Remuneration Committee
meeting was held during the year to consider the salary increment of the
Directors and all members had attended the meeting.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management and reviewing
the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability as
well as remuneration benchmarks in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. No Director or any of his associates shall be involved in deciding his
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee normally meets once a year
and at other times as required. The Remuneration Committee had reviewed
the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee meeting held during
the year is set out below.
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Name of Attendance/ eRHE
Remuneration Committee Members Number of meetings FHHZEEHER R BITRY
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 22 EEAEEL s AFMT (EE) 212
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 2/2  Charles Edward Chapman’t & 2/2
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 22 EREHRE 212
Nomination Committee REZES®

As at 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the Nomination
Committee are Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP, Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and
Mr. Wong Ka Kit, all are the Independent Non-executive Directors. Dr. Lui
Ming Wabh, SBS, JP is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include (i) review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the CEO.
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The Nomination Committee meeting held at least once a year and additional
meeting may be held as required. During the year, the Nomination Committee
held a meeting and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee meeting held during the
year is set out below:
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Name of Attendance/ eBHE
Nomination Committee Members Number of meetings REZEEREU SR BITRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 22 BEEEEL s ATaE (EEF) 2/2
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 2/2  Charles Edward Chapman’t & 2/2
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 22 mREEAE 2/2
Corporate Governance Committee TtEEREES

As at 31 March 2016, the Corporate Governance Committee comprises R-Z—XNFZA=Z+—H GtEETRZESH=-A

three Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the Corporate
Governance Committee are Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP, Mr. Charles Edward
Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit, all are the Independent Non-executive
Directors. Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP is the Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee.

The Corporate Governance Committee is primarily responsible for developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and making recommendations to the Board and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

B IERITESMEN - CEESCLEEKRE RRRE
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The Corporate Governance Committee meeting held at least once a year, EEARZESEVEFRIT—REH - FA F
During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee held a meeting and EAZE S BIT—XEFH R AQARETEAER
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and ~ EEE R E 2 BE K FEH -

regulatory requirements.

The attendance record of the Corporate Governance Committee meeting held FRRITZOEERTE SR 2 HFECHE WM
during the year is set out below: I

Name of Attendance/ eBHE
Corporate Governance Committee Members Number of meetings HEERZEEHERSE BITRY
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 171 EREE L s ATt (£/F) 11
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman3t 4 171
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 11 'wEREEAE 11
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board reviews the Group’s internal control system from time to time
and will take any necessary and appropriate action to maintain an adequate
internal control system to safeguard Shareholders’ interests. An overall review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system will be discussed annually
with the Audit Committee.

During the financial year under review, the Directors had arranged to conduct
reviews over the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system to
provide reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations
in achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding Group’s assets,
providing reliable financial reporting, and complying with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff for the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Both the Audit
Committee and the Board were satisfied that the internal control system of
the Group has been functioned effectively during the year and no material
internal control aspects of any significant problems were noted.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, except that
for Dr. Lui, sBs, Jp, an independent non-executive Director, the Company was
informed that: (i) on 4 June 2015, during the period of 60 days immediately
preceding 22 June 2015, the publication date of the annual results of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2015, the spouse of Dr. Lui acquired
1,498,000 shares of the Company; and (i) on 3 July 2015 and 29 September
2015 respectively, without first notifying in writing the chairman and receiving
a dated written acknowledgement in accordance with paragraph 8 of the
Model Code, the spouse of Dr. Lui acquired 3,200,000 and 402,000 shares of
the Company respectively (together, the “Incidents”). By reason of inadvertent
oversight, Dr. Lui only became aware of the Incidents on or around early
November 2015. While becoming aware of the Incidents, Dr. Lui notified
the Company and informed Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited in
writing and submitted the relevant notifications of interest in shares of listed
corporation as required under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent auditors
during the year, is set out as follows:

CREARE

2T

FR B EAAR BB AZEAD 2 B S 8 50
T

Services rendered FriR AR 7% Fee paid/payable
et ENER

HK$'000

FET

Audit of financial statements BB B WK 2,800

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

With the assistance of the Finance Department which is under the supervision
of the Chief Financial Officer, the Directors ensure the preparation and
publication of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in a timely
manner in accordance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and
accounting standards. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

A statement by the Company’s auditors about their reporting responsibilities
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 43 to 45 of this report.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company established a dedicated investor relations section in order
to provide timely information to the investors as well as Shareholders and
institutional investors. The Company also conducts a meeting with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time and to maintain updated information
opened to the public regarding recent development of the Company. Relevant
information of investor relations is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com/html/en/investor_relations.html).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company recognises the rights of Shareholders and their opinions are
valuable to the Company. The Shareholders are encouraged to participate
in general meetings or to appoint proxies or corporate representatives to
attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings. The Shareholders are encouraged to raise their enquiries
on the operations, corporate governance, corporate strategy and further
development of the Company during the meeting by way of shareholders’
rights. The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored
and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made
to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served. The Board members, in
particular, either the chairmen or deputy chairmen of Board Committees or
their delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditors will
attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established Shareholders Communication Policy in providing
a communication platform to the Shareholders of the Company with
information about the Company and enabling them to engage actively with
the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.
Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders shall be
ensured at all times. Any question regarding this policy shall be directed to the
company secretary of the Company or the board of directors of the Company.
Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meeting shall be in place
to encourage Shareholders’ participation and all corporate communication
will be provided to Shareholders in plain language and in both English and
Chinese version to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding, including but not
limited to interim reports, annual reports, results announcements, notice
of general meeting, circulars, and associated explanatory documents, other
announcements and monthly return on movements in the Company's
securities for each month and next day disclosure returns in relation to the
Company, which are available on the Company's website (http://www.
avconcept.com).
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Ernst & Young RXEETEISE AR Tel EB: +852 2846 9888
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower BEPIRREEIR Fax 8 E: +852 2868 4432
ﬁﬂ( 1 Tim Mei Avenue DS KE2218 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AV Concept
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 46
to 171, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March
2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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VYear ended 31 March 2016 HE =T —~"F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—NEF —hE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FExT F& T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEKEER
REVENUE U 25 5 1,037,023 1,957,690
Cost of sales $HE B A (1,010,893) (1,872,863)
Gross profit EF 26,130 84,827
Other income and gains H AU A K s 5 7,782 7,054
Changes in fair value of investment REWERNFEEZ
properties b)) 14 (5,477) (380)
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD HEH (14,578) (31,579)
Administrative expenses ﬁBZ 2 A (81,862) (94,577)
Fair value losses, net: NEEEBEFRE:
Equity investments at fair value EREREATEEYERZ
through profit or loss MR
— held for trading —RHEER (18,113) (11,013)
— designated as such upon — RN IE RS TE
initial recognition AUt R (174) (39,216)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate ~ fR{EH & —MEEE A a2 WS = 11,220
Loss on disposal of an associate & —AE A E 2 EE — (222)
Other expenses, net Hth & R F5E (74,255) (60,334)
Finance costs Bl & A AN 7 (5,829) (8,626)
Share of profits and losses of: DG I B
Joint ventures R 158,362 94,209
Associates /N 8,771 (1,202)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM BFEREER ZBRBA
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BRSO (B8) 6 757 (49,839)
Income tax FriS i 9 1,389 (564)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM  HELE XK ZFR
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BAL (EE) 2,146 (50,403)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREER
Loss for the year from BRI EEBZ
a discontinued operation FAEE 10 = (14,538)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FRER, (FR) 2,146 (64,941)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 March 2016 &
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RE=ZRA=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-KE —ZET—ARF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FHE T
Attributable to: BATN A FE1h
Owners of the Company ViNNETEZE DN
Profit/(loss) for the year from SFEREEE 2
continuing operations FREAN (EE) 2,147 (49,584)
Loss for the year from ERIEREER 2
a discontinued operation FNEE = (44,703)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AARHEE ABEEFER
owners of the Company swm Al (E1E) 2,147 (94,287)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A
Loss for the year from REREEBK 2
continuing operations FANEE (1) (819)
Profit for the year from BRI EEBZ
a discontinued operation F N F - 30,165
Profit/(loss) for the year IR EREEFA
attributable to non-controlling A (EE)
interests (1) 29,346
2,146 (64,941)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE AN EE AEL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS EREF(FHE)
OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic HAR
— For profit/(loss) for the year —FREF, (EE) HKO0.28 cent &l (HK12.94 cent 7))
— For profit/(loss) from continuing —RHEREERZ
operations wmAl (E8) HKO0.28 cent &1l (HK6.81 cent j&11l)
Diluted e
— For profit/(loss) for the year —FRmEFl (EE) HKO0.28 cent &1l (HK12.94 cent 7#1ll)
— For profit/(loss) from —BHEBELEEER
continuing operations wm i, (EE) HKO0.28 cent ;&1 (HK6.80 cent #1ll)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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VYear ended 31 March 2016 HE =T —~"F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XE — R
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5E FTERT FHT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FREF (BE) 2,146 (64,941)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hts2EWBA (BE)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to BREREBHETHIES
be reclassified to profit or loss Bz EMm2EmEA S
in subsequent periods: (BE):
Available-for-sale investments: Efﬁi\ﬁ BERE
Changes in fair value NEEBEED (30,817) 491
Reclassification adjustment for ARG EERZ
impairment loss included in the BB E R 2 EET
consolidated statement of DI
profit or loss 6 29,888 -
(929) 491
Exchange differences on translation of MEGINER 2 BN ZH
foreign operations (586) (6,964)
Net other comprehensive loss to be HREEABET S EE
reclassified to profit or loss B At 2 EEE
in subsequent periods HER (1,515) (6,473)
Other comprehensive income TERERBAERS>EE
not to be reclassified to profit or loss Bz Hth 2 EKA
in subsequent periods:
Gains on property revaluation %%ﬁﬁ”ﬁ(ﬁ = 35,712
Income tax effect Fristim 2 = (8,928)
Net other comprehensive income not to be NE&RAFEHFEH HEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Bz < H b 2 E UL A FHEE
periods = 26,784
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FREMEERA
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, (B]) - HIRBE
NET OF TAX (1,515) 20,311
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FREEBA (BE)
INCOME/(LOSS) B
FOR THE YEAR 631 (44,630)
Attributable to: AT AT :
Owners of the Company RKRAEER A 632 (73,978)
Non-controlling interests FEERR (1) 29,348
631 (44,630)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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MMmmZMG_§*ﬁ$7H7+ A

2016 2015
—E-XRE —hEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt E FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN U & 13 40,605 42,495
Investment properties "EME 14 116,762 121,891
Goodwill Bl 15 10,483 10,483
Other intangible assets ﬁm,ﬁ\ﬁfé{F 16 4,198 12,945
Investments in joint ventures REEREZRE 17 370,153 213,388
Investments in associates REtERR 2 "E 18 22,439 13,522
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 20,891 90,173
Deposits E® 22 466 491
Pledged time deposits BEAE TR 24 269 1,024
Total non-current assets IERMEBEERE 586,266 506,412
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE8 20 69,259 147,155
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R 21 63,994 211,059
Due from associates JE Wi B 2 R I FRIE 18 12,157 20,867
Prepayments, deposits and SEENEZSER Hz@&
other receivables H A fE KT 22 10,164 33,408
Equity investments at fair value through & iB1828 ?ﬁ’&zﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘]ﬁ%z
profit or loss AR E 23 72,994 89,164
Tax recoverable ATk B A IR 117 300
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEER 24 69,563 131,739
Total current assets mMEEELRE 298,248 633,692
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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31 March 2016 ZE—R"F=A=+—H

2016 2015
—NE —AF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
L FET F& T
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables, deposits received and EREZER BEkize Rk
accrued expenses &R 25 62,652 104,725
Interest-bearing bank and Bt B ERTT R EAth & K
other borrowings 26 127,480 341,055
Finance lease payables FEmERERIE 27 287 160
Tax payable FESHLIR 185 443
Financial guarantee obligation MISEREE 28 12,866 14,465
Total current liabilities mB BB 203,470 460,848
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 94,778 172,844
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBEE
LIABILITIES 681,044 679,256
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Bt B ERTTIE SR 26 8,826 9,265
Finance lease payables FERmERERIE 27 610 280
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBEE 29 14,046 15,545
Total non-current liabilities EME B ERTE 23,482 25,090
Net assets EEFE 657,562 654,166
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRAR 30 77,294 77,294
Reserves i 568,923 568,291
Equity attributable to owners of the RNATIHEE NELER
Company 646,217 645,585
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A 11,345 8,581
Total equity U 657,562 654,166
So Yuk Kwan So Chi On
#1219 BER
Director Director
EZE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
CARRBBE

Year ended 31 March 2016 %Zi_gfxxizﬁl =t+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2PN
Available- Equity-
forsale settled
Share investments Asset  share-based Bxchange Non-
Issued premium Capital Other  revaluation  revaluation payment  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve’ reserve reserve reserve® reserve reserve profits* Total interests equity
e e

RAEf  AEEf URDER  EXED
BRRAE BhEEE  RARE ABES B E1 0 RE  REEAe 8B FEREE B
Notes  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
Wit TEr  TEr  TEn TET TEn  TEr  TEx TR TET TEr TR TEn

At 1 April 2014 RZZ-REMA-R nm 434,85 19,484 (38,306) (2393) 11,981 110 9,945 187,011 693,799 (25,146) 668,653
Profitfoss) for the year FRiEFl/ (B8) - - - - - - - - (94287)  (94,287) 29,346 (64,941)
Other comprehensive incomefloss) for theyear: £ REM2ERA/ (BE) :
Changes in fair value of availablefor-sale MHHEREDTEEL
investments, net of tax 28 npiE - - - - 491 - - - - 491 - 91
Gain on property revaluation, net of tax NEERYE RHE - - - - - 26,784 - - - 26,784 - 26,784
Exchange differences on translation of BEBNEH ELER
foreign operations
- Subsidiaries ~HEAR = = = © - - - (6,991) = (6,991) 2 (6,989)
~ Joint ventures -RERE - - - - - - - 25 - 25 - 25
Total comprehensive income(loss) for the year FR2ENA/ (BR) 8% - - - - 491 26,784 - (6,966) (94287) (13978 29,348 (44,630)
Acquisition of a non-controling interest [ £l 323 - - - (177) - - - - - a7 17 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - - - - - - - (984) (984)
Issue of new shares on subscription REBETHRA 30 6,183 18,613 - - - - - - - 24.7% - 24,79
Equity-settled share option arrangements e EBRERHE 31 - - - - - - 1,145 - - 1,145 5,186 6,331
AL31 Mrch 2015 R=2-Tf=A=t-A T 456 194ed G8dB)r (90 TGS 125 2979 @74t eS8 85l 654166
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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VYear ended 31 March 2016 HE =T —~"F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAAREAEL
Available- Equity-
forsale settled
Share investments Asset share-based  Exchange Non-
Issued premium Capital Other  revaluation  revaluation payment fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve’ reserve reserve reserve® reserve reserve profits** Total interests equity
THEE RELE
REEff KEEf NRBAR  EiK®
BRTRE RGEEE RARE  HURE i i B BE  REER #E FERER  REER
Note HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
[iE3 TR TEn TER TER TR TR FEn TR TR TR g 2 TEn
At 1 April 2015 71,29 453,469 19,484 (38,483) (1,902) 38,765 1,255 2,979 92,724 645,585 8,581 654,166
Profit/loss) for the year - - - - - - - - 2,141 2141 (1) 2,146
Other comprehensive incomefloss) for theyear: — FREM2ERA/ (BE) :
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale TREERADTEEL
investments, net of tax - - - - (929) - - - - (929) - (929)
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations
- Subsidiaries -KEAR = = = = = = = (734) - (138) - (739)
- Joint ventures -REL% - - - - - - - 2 - 2 - 2
~ Associates ~BERT - - - - - - - 146 - 146 - 146
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year W\]?@W\/ (E8) - - - - (929) - - (586) 2,141 632 (1) 631
Equity-settled share option arrangements & %‘*%W\%E%F 31 - - - - - - - - - - 2,765 2,765
At31 March 2016 RZE-AEZA=t-8 TIA% 4569 19484 (3BAB3) (83 376 1255t 2393 OARTT 66217 135 6STS2
# Included in the balance of the capital reserve as at 31 March 2016 was a capital  * RIZ—AF=ZA=T—HZRARBEEHRBERTE
redemption reserve balance amounting to approximately HK$16,142,000 (2015: 5] % 8 45 82 4916,142,000/8 7T (== — A 4F : 16,142,000

##

#itH

52

HK$16,142,000).

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from owner-occupied
properties to investment properties carried at fair value. In accordance with HKAS 16,
this balance was frozen and was not available to offset the current and future years’
revaluation deficits on investment properties until the retirement or disposal of these
assets.

As at 31 March 2016, there was goodwill of HK$12,427,000 (2015: HK$12,427,000)
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years which remained eliminated
against the consolidated retained profits.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$568,923,000 (2015:
HK$568,291,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2016.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 &

##

BIT) e

AEEMREREKERMEREERARAFERT
IR BREME - BEEB G RERE 1658  ZHEBREBR
HETA AR EHAFERARARFERENEZEME
MOEERSFEERBEIHERL-

REZE—RE=ZA=1+—H ANEEEKEHBA
A A4 2 7 #12,427,0008 T ( —E— R4 : 12,427,000
PBTT) BB SR A R HEFIE S

ZEFEEEAR T —XR"F=A=1+— Ei*/—\ﬁﬂ%
MIE A Z 4R A FE1#568,923,0008 T (T — A F:
568,291,000/ 7T ) °



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\ Eﬁaﬁ/)lbg%&

Year ended 31 March 2016 HZE T —

RE=ZRA=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XRE —hfF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 5E FTET T
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBHAERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax: BB ATE A (E518) ¢
From continuing operations REBHBELEER 757 (49,839)
From a discontinued operation 5 B R S 7 - (14,538)
Adjustments for: A TIRE fEH %
Finance costs EE§EX$ 7 5,829 8,626
Share of profits of joint ventures DihE & ERF (158,362) (94,209)
Share of profits and losses of associates SaN 8 AN T b | DS (8,771) 1,202
Depreciation = 2,823 4,541
Changes in fair value of investment REWELTEEZEY
properties 5,477 380
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b A B 5 6 3,977 7,090
Impairment of trade receivables, net FEWE 5 BRI 2R EFEE 6 3,093 1,189
Recovery of bad debts i qEp= 5 (557) -
Bad debts written off i 55558 BR 6 - 1,021
Provision for impairment of inventories T8 2B EREE 6 1,966 3,229
Write-off of other receivables Hi61 55 At i W RIR 6 311 23,980
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEYE - W%&“ﬁlﬁ B
property, plant and equipment 28 (e (155) 3,208
Gain on deemed disposal of associates RIEHEHE QR 2 e 6 = (11,220)
Loss on disposal of associates LEBE AR ZEE 6 - 222
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR 2 EE - 669
Provision for amounts due from associates & U B 2 /X & 5K 18 B 15 6 - 654
Loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale ’E—H# HEKREZ
investments B8 (rzs) 6 7,338 (227)
Impairment of goodwill a2 B 6 - 22,297
Impairment of other intangible assets B EpEE 2 RAE 6 4,700 =
Impairment of an available-for-sale AEHERE 2 RIE
investment, at fair value BATEE 6 29,888 =
Impairment of an available-for-sale AEHERE 2 RE
investment, at cost LA 6 15,540 -
Gain on derecognition of financial RICHERMIGRRETZ
guarantee obligation = 6 (28,799) (15,376)
Impairment of investments in joint %JL%Z&QZ/FME
ventures 6 28,799 15,376
Fair value losses, net: NFEEEEFHE:
Equity investments at fair value FERBERIEATEE
through profit or loss PR 2 I ARG &
— held for trading —FHEEE 6 18,113 11,013
— designated as such upon initial —E@?ﬂﬁﬁﬁ&i@ﬁ%
recognition 8E AL R 6 174 39,216
Equity-settled share option expense A 4 B AR B 6 2,765 6,331
Dividend income from listed investments £ & 2 & B U8 A 5 (46) (951)
Bank interest income RITH B UA 5 (389) (187)
(65,529) (36,303)
Decrease in amounts due from associates  J& Y Bt 4 A &) ZRIE & 4> 8,710 12,205
Decrease in inventories FERD 75,864 110,790
Decrease in trade receivables FEWE 5 BR ZOR A 144,572 7,893
Decrease in prepayments, TERFIA - R READ
deposits and other receivables JE W IR R 23,255 87,998
Cash generated from operations KEMSEHRS
- page 54 — %548 186,872 182,583
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/-ﬁ Iﬁ:ﬁlﬂbg’%‘%

VYear ended 31 March 2016 HE =T —~"F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—NE —AF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
L FET F& T
Cash generated from operations BERERE
- page 53 — %538 186,872 182,583
Decrease in trade payables, ERE SRR BEkize Rk
deposits received and accrued expenses JEETE R (42,189) (34,603)
Dividend income received from Bli—fEE E e FEREMA
a joint venture - 43,013
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BREEBMEH 177 1,225
Overseas taxes paid B8N E (340) (1,968)
Net cash flows from operating activities & EEMBHRSREFHE 144,520 190,250
CASH FLOWS FROM REZHZRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received BRI TH S 389 187
Dividends received from listed investments 24 &% &K S 46 951
Decrease in pledged time deposits BT EBRERRD 755 1,662
Purchases of items of property, BEWHE BEMEHEIEE
plant and equipment 33(b) (662) (2,427)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE  BRER&HEEE
property, plant and equipment FriS 538 627 387
Subscription of shares in a joint venture RE—HeLEhERD - (30,000)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale H £ &] Hjﬁ &
investments TECE - 30,000
Purchases of available-for-sale investments F# & a] Hjﬁ S & (8,181) (60,995)
Purchases of equity investments BEERERKZATER
at fair value through profit or loss HIBR 2 AL E 33(c) (23,308) (1,329)
Disposal of equity investments HEFERBEREATEER
at fair value through profit or loss 5 B8R 2 IR AN IR B 44,959 61,046
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing "EEEME(FA)
activities ReneFR 14,625 (518)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 March 2016 HE =T —"F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—B-RE —E-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt E FHExT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM METH2RERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITR D TR RR - 24,796
New bank and other borrowings %ﬁiaﬁﬁ TR EAME R 27,517 =
Repayment of bank and other borrowings (£ 38817 K H b f& 2% (14,535) (42,948)
Net decrease in import and O REFBIRER
trust receipt loans A FEE (227,084) (117,446)
Capital element of finance lease BEHEHRSRBELRL S
rental payments 33(b) (250) (218)
Interest paid BAFE 7 (5,807) (8,598)
Interest element on finance lease BEHERSRIBENEHS
rental payments 7 (22) (28)
Net cash flows used in financing activities EéE EEFTAR S REFHE (220,181) (144,442)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRZERRELER
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B, (L) E8E (61,036) 45,290
Cash and cash equivalents FYzHekERREER
at beginning of year 131,739 87,755
Effect of foreign exchange rate b o< TE TR
changes, net (1,140) (1,306)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2ASRERREER
AT END OF YEAR 69,563 131,739
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF ReRERREER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R Z DM
Cash and cash equivalents as stated FREMBIRARR
in the consolidated statement of HEHRERER
financial position and in the consolidated Fi#i v R4 M ERIREER
statement of cash flows 24 69,563 131,739

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 G % 55



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e R AR MR

31 March 2016 ZE—R"F=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

RNAREEER

AV Concept Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address of the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, the Cayman Islands, British West Indies and its principal place
of business is located at 6th Floor, Enterprise Square Three, 39 Wang
Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was engaged in the following principal

activities:
o Marketing and distribution of electronic components;
o Design, development and sale of electronic products; and

° Venture capital investment

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AV Concept Holdings Limited ([A2QF]) A&
RASHEFMRIZBERAR -ANRARZH
it 9% = B2 5E AP.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, the Cayman Islands, British West
Indies' MEE B E MBI B R EBNEERR
B3R E S = Hi6E -

FA AEETERENTER:

. BEFttzmisHERENRDH:

. EIESZRH BRRHER

. BIEKRE

FRMEATZEN
AARZEEHBARFEMT -

Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable to
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
£ SMRIREERE BRT/ERRE ARAEERABD L TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE i
AV Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of electronic
FRAERDA B 287 components
HK$1,000,000° BEETMH
1,000,000/ 7@
AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD4,000,000 - 100 Trading of electronic
GiIb 4,000,000 7T components
BES Ll
AV Electronics Group Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$40,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 40,000% 1 REER
ERRLEE/BE
Signeo Design International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Design, development and
N 1004 7T sale of electronic products
Rt HERHEETER
AVC Technology (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Trading of electronic
BRE (BR)BERAR B 17T components
BES Ll
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AAREEEH @)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EENBARZER (#)
Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable to
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
a1 EMRUIREERSY CRT/ERRE RAREEREEDL TEER
Direct Indirect
HiE ik
New Concept Capital Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding and
(“New Concept”)* Hong Kong (E venture capital investment
RERLES/BA REZBRRBFERRE
People & Semiconductor Co., Ltd. Korea KRW400,000,000 - 100 Trading of electronic
FHE 400,000,0008 5 components
BES M
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst t 3 B3 BB Tok B w1 AN 35 745 BT sk E At 2o ok B BR BX
& Young global network BEBMBEX
e Represents deferred shares issued by AV Concept Limited ® BAEBITARARBITZIELRG
g New Concept is a venture capital organisation g New Concept /3 — fE 8 3& A0 &k
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the ti’%’iwﬂ_'\§$wﬁﬁzl§¢f¥ﬁ%ﬁkig%%ﬁk
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or HRAEEEEFEXERBD) 2ARAKBR
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give Al-EBEERA" ﬁDﬁ‘JHﬂEMWE Al G B8
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result HREBARITR
in particulars of excessive length.
BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 RBEXE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, certain available-
for-sale investments (including key management insurance contracts)
and investment properties which have been measured at fair value.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

NREMBHRERDIBEBEEESMASHBZE
f%ﬂﬂ%iﬁ%i%ﬁ”(@%FJ’TE%%W%"?&E%Z@?‘J
B EANRRE) BEARSHRARES
7 GOl BRERERE -RBEBBREATE
TEE\JEEZHXZK&,Q ETAIHEERE (BEEX
EEABRBEHN) RIBEWMEIEAFEBER
iﬁl\'$£u?/m\ﬁﬂ%$ﬁi€ﬁ?ﬁﬂiﬁk$/£%%§%°$
i%é%ﬁ#&%ﬁﬁb%ﬁfﬂ Mk IES B HEA
GRIFTEBEER AZELZ TAH-
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58

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 &

2.1

mEEE (m)

HEREEE

BAMKREREALTREMBAT (HHE X
&E@)HE-B - AF=A=t+-ALEFEY
BIEHE - MBA T ARA T EE R EE
B (DEABIEEE) S AEER2ERTE
SRS BREREREET RO R RIS
DEFEED (AEBERTRAEENATE
BREALCEERES I HERA) Y ERZER
B BER {3 120 4 o

WARAEZRXMEREFE LR ERECERZH
SRBRELEN  AAEBERNFHEEEHA
HEIRADEZENSSER —EBEERIE
B

(a) HEFERECEHMEBRERBTAAZANZ
B

(b) EHMBNTHMELEZER: Rk
(0 FAEEZEEBIEERSEE-

MIE D REARR 2 BHRE 2 HmEHRER
WA —BZ S BRRHE -MBARZXER
FEBMSEFEZ ARG AR UHERS
AR EEZEFRELEZBA/IE

Bl HEME2EARASERD ERENAKEFR
BIHEA A NMOEEE i s - BNt 28 2 G BIR AR
R HIRNEAA R - EAREEK S A FRE
TZXZEBZMBEEERNEERAE #Em-
WA A RReRENFEREKEEHEH-

HWEEEMBRER b = EEdETES —
AR FHREE AREEEENTGHEED
THIBIRERE - NN B AR 2 R EER
BEH NI B BRI G BRI RESER
5o

e 75 52 [ SR AR ST P /BB 8 ) 2 #E ) # - BRI 4R IR
RZMBLrRIZEE (BEAE) RAE (HE
] JEHE AR M 25 2 BR T & BB M (i) s MRS 8k 2
R MEER WRROERKEZAFEE
(TR B EMIRE 2 A FEELGNVEEAEM
Rt EE Z B EAL - TN EMEEPAR
BRZAEEREMBORAEEER N EREE
EXBBERARAZEE EFOoHEEBREIR
B (Eh) -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first time
for the current year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19

Annual Improvements to

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The nature and impact of each amendment is described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions from employees
or third parties to defined benefit plans. The amendments simplify
the accounting for contributions that are independent of the
number of years of employee service, for example, employee
contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage
of salary. If the amount of the contributions is independent of the
number of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise
such contributions as a reduction of service cost in the period in
which the related service is rendered. The amendments have had
no impact on the Group as the Group does not have defined
benefit plans.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued
in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
Details of the amendments that are effective for the current year
are as follows:

o HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including a
brief description of operating segments that have been
aggregated and the economic characteristics used to assess
whether the segments are similar. The amendments also
clarify that a reconciliation of segments assets to total
assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation
is reported to the chief operating decision maker. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group.

e PR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

BT RERRBE 2

AEBERAFE 2RAMBREERERAT

RIBFTER]

BEGHERZ19% (BRI A)

ZF-TER-F—-F

ERE N8 ER AT

ZEBBHBREEAL

BHZFRHE EHES

ZEF—FEIF-=F

ZEBBHBREEAL

BHZFRHE EHES

BERTAZHEERTZEFHAWT

(a)

BREEHERE1ORET ERANER K
F=RERRBANFBEL ZHRZE
FIARRIEIL FE IR (B B ARTS F & B E Z 13X
(zFLEFEEALAEZREHZ) 2
BRTREE - HMERS AR FERE
SE BRIV BB M A 1R (4R B AR 75 3 R 8 %
S HFER BRI KA Z IR - AR A&
B3 SRR AR AR B SR IERT AB AR
3 A A o] R 2 o

M- —NE— AWM 2 BB B EE
Alz —E—FFEZ T —FHHPZFEF
HEHINZBERBU B RE EL 2 EF]
Ko NAFEERZETARFENT :

. BEVBRE LR ESRALL 520 -
EFERVANBEEREENERE
BB E LR E8R 2 A ERIBAE
AR PR I 2 U SRR & pf
BRIBZE DA RBRETEDH
EREUZ KBS - BT AIE
BOMEEREEMECYHRER
ZEHRERTHERELEREERS
FAREE © RIER] AN E AN H I AT

22 48
T

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 G % 59



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

72 N

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

60

(b)

()

(continued)

o HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and HKAS 38
Intangible Assets: Clarifies the treatment of gross carrying
amount and accumulated depreciation or amortisation
of revalued items of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group as the Group does not apply the revaluation
model for the measurement of these assets.

o HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a
management entity (i.e., an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party subject
to related party disclosure requirements. In addition, an
entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose
the expenses incurred for management services. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as the Group
does not receive any management services from other
entities.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle issued
in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
Details of the amendments that are effective for the current year
are as follows:

o HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that joint
arrangements but not joint ventures are outside the
scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope exception applies only
to the accounting in the financial statements of the
joint arrangement itself. The amendment is applied
prospectively. The amendment has had no impact on the
Group as the Group did not form any joint arrangement
during the year.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(€ (continued)

o HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the
portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can be applied not only
to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other
contracts within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as
applicable. The amendment is applied prospectively from
the beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 13 was
initially applied. The amendment has had no impact on the
Group as the Group does not apply the portfolio exception
in HKFRS 13.

o HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that HKFRS 3,
instead of the description of ancillary services in HKAS
40 which differentiates between investment property
and owner-occupied property, is used to determine if
the transaction is a purchase of an asset or a business
combination. The amendment is applied prospectively for
acquisitions of investment properties. The amendment has
had no impact on the Group as there was no acquisition of
investment properties during the year.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the
Listing Rules issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial year. The
main impact to the consolidated financial statements is on
the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated

62

23 EEMEMRERZERMBRE

financial statements.

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and

HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 and

HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments?
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Leases*

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable

to the Group

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to
replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 April 2018. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer of an interest in
a joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes
a business must apply the relevant principles for business combinations
in HKFRS 3. The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest
in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional
interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retained. In
addition, a scope exclusion has been added to HKFRS 11 to specify
that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint
control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of
the same ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply to both the
acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition
of any additional interests in the same joint operation. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 April 2016.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements and
estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In September 2015, the HKICPA issued
an amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding a one-year deferral of the
mandatory effective date of HKFRS 15 to 1 January 2018. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018 and is currently assessing
the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

HKFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. The standard introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently. The Group is yet to assess the full impact
of the standard on its financial position and results of operations. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in
respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial statements. The
amendments clarify:

(i)  the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) the specific line items in the statement of profit or loss and the
statement of financial position may be disaggregated,;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present
the notes to the financial statements; and

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must
be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when
additional subtotals are presented in the statement of financial position
and the statement of profit or loss. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2016. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle in HKAS
16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits
that are generated from operating business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through the use
of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to
depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not expected to
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 April 2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-
based method for the calculation of depreciation of its non-current
assets.
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POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in associates or
joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, certain available-for-
sale investments and equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

an entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

2% - 3%
20% — 33'5%

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fittings and office equipment 20% - 335%
Plant, machinery and tools 20% — 50%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group
as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuation is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (continued)

Club memberships

The Group's club memberships are stated at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on an individual
basis.

Trademarks and customer relationships

Trademarks and customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of five years.

Mobile application

Mobile application is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as
finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or available-
for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investments revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 &

24 FESHBERBE @)

REREMESMEE (8)
ERBRBRATEEIRZEREE (B)
MR E A LIARAZOTE TR 2 B 1 R &R
HEANZRBEFERRRIY EZIREE ME
BN ERFEEERRSEEEBRRIEATE
B BIAMERTETARAFEEAR %
FMARTETARAFEESE EAFEE
HHNEEBRaRAER REERNKRRER
HPMARRSREBERERET L SREE
ENOREBBERRAFEEIIRERE 7
SETEM-

BEXRRERRKIE
ERNEYHRBETZETESREE ARE LA
EEMN RSB EA DR S ERE - R IH
FHRR RFEERKRUBRNZERE KA
RAEMREREEE - R BEHRERKARBER X
Y BB B 2 (R P e 2o (B - S0 et A B I B BRI K
AR D 2 B RS A - BIR A R H AR E
BRERZEMRARWER  BEMESE ZEBE
AR aRZBERAN (MERME) REM
P (BLIEUWGRIET 5 ) ARER -

AHHESRMIRE

A ESRRETIIEEMBRARE ZFITES
BMEE -BARARLERM 2 RAKRERER A
FIEEERA TEEE/EBRERAFEE
FIBR °

MiakERE AL ESRREERRAFERE
RO MAZRWERERINATHEEREE
HREEAERREMEEEA BEER IEERZ
RE (ER Rt RaBREFABER AR
R)HEEZIREWETE RE (B el
FBRRAAHEEREERFHREN D BERS
BRERR)RL -FHAEAHRLESRREMKRRZ
MNERBEEDR2HANBWARBRELA - I
RIBTXAAE [WEHER cBRREFEABRRER
MR BEMEA -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount
is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to pay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and borrowings, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, finance lease payables and financial
guarantee obligation.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and includes all
costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on
the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks and
other financial institutions, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(c)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(d)  trademark licence income, when the relevant service has been
rendered; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company and one of its subsidiaries operate share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after
7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expenses, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense
is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China, Singapore and Korea are required to participate in pension
schemes operated by the respective local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the pension schemes. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the pension schemes.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. In prior years, final dividends
proposed by the directors were classified as a separate allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the consolidated statement
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. Following the implementation of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of associate grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment properties portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of the ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the future
performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the
deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors are
also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing evidence
that it is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary
differences, tax planning strategies and the periods in which estimated
tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
and related financial models and budgets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and to the extent that there is insufficient
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available
within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses
carried forward, the asset balance will be reduced and charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The amount of unrecognised
tax losses at 31 March 2016 was approximately HK$318 million (2015:
approximately HK$227 million). Further details are contained in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including:

(@  current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(c)  discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2016 was
HK$116,762,000 (2015: HK$121,891,000). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwiill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite
life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other
times when such indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are given in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost. When the fair value declines, management makes
assumptions about the decline in value to determine whether there is
an impairment that should be recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. For available-for-sale investments measured at cost,
management assesses the future prospects of these investments to
determine whether there is an impairment that should be recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31 March 2016,
impairment losses of HK$29,888,000 (2015: Nil) and HK$19,433,000
(2015: HK$3,893,000) have been recognised for available-for-sale
investments measured at fair value and cost respectively. The carrying
amounts of available-for-sale investments and convertible promissory
note designated as an available-for-sale investment as at 31 March
2016 were HK$20,891,000 (2015: HK$74,633,000) and nil (2015:
HK$15,540,000), respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
The Group makes impairment provision for trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of
these receivables. Impairment provision is made for these receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the
use of judgement and estimates, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each debtor. Where the expectation
on the recoverability of these receivables is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of these
receivables and impairment provision in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. The aggregate carrying amount of
trade receivables as at 31 March 2016 was HK$63,994,000 (2015:
HK$211,059,000). The aggregate carrying amount of deposits and
other receivables as at 31 March 2016 was HK$9,047,000 (2015:
HK$31,517,000).

Provision for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the inventory ageing analysis
periodically, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The Group
carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis at the end
of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving items through management'’s estimation of the net realisable
value for such obsolete and slow-moving items based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The aggregate
carrying amount of the Group's inventories as at 31 March 2016 was
HK$69,259,000 (2015: HK$147,155,000).

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2016 was
HK$10,483,000 (2015: HK$10,483,000). Further details are given in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value of an unlisted equity investment

The unlisted equity investment has been valued based on the investee’s
financial position and results, risk profile, nature of business, prospects,
as well as reference to market valuations for similar entities quoted in
active market or applicable multiples of comparable listed companies
adjusted to reflect the circumstances of the investee. The fair value
of the unlisted equity investment at 31 March 2016 was nil (2015:
HK$60,994,000). Further details are included in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its intangible assets with a finite useful life on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful lives reflect management'’s estimate of the period that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of these
intangible assets. The carrying amount of other intangible assets at 31
March 2016 was HK$4,198,000 (2015: HK$12,945,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@  the semiconductor distribution segment engages in the sale and
distribution of electronic components;

(b)  the consumer electronic product segment engages in the design,
development and sale of electronic products;

(©)  the venture capital segment engages in the investments in
listed/unlisted equity investments with an ultimate objective of
obtaining capital gains on investee’s equity listing or, in some
circumstances, prior to listing. It also includes investments in real
estate or managed funds; and

(d) the others segment mainly comprises the Group’s mobile
application development business.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure
of adjusted profit/loss before tax from continuing operations. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax from continuing operations is measured
consistently with the Group's profit/loss before tax from continuing
operations except that bank interest income, dividend income from
listed investments, rental income, share of profits and losses of
associates and joint ventures, gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments,
impairment of available-for-sale investments, gain/loss on disposal and
deemed disposal of associates, changes in fair value of investment
properties, provision for amounts due from associates, write-off of other
receivables, finance costs and unallocated expenses are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in joint ventures and associates,
tax recoverable, pledged time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, finance lease payables, financial
guarantee obligation and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REHIPEE @)

Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HEE
YERNH ETER b Htt it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL FET TER TEL
Year ended 31 March 2016 HE-2-R%
ZA=t+-HLEE
Segment revenue: AHKE
Sales to external customers and RNRERHEER
revenue from continuing operations FELEEBYE 992,466 41,682 = 2,875 1,037,023
Segment results PEEE (38,150) (3,865) (23,809) (16,228) (82,052)
Reconciliation: HiR:
Bank interest income RITFEMA 389
Dividend income from IHREZREBA
listed investments 46
Rental income HEWA 5,361
Share of profits of joint ventures PEEELEEN 158,362
Share of profits and losses of assoclates  7E L& A BRI K B 18 8,771
Gain on disposal of items of property, ~ HENE BER
plant and equipment B EL e 155
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEEREZER
investments (7,338)
Write-off of other receivables s E o eI FR (311)
Impairment of an available-for-sale AfHERE 2 RE:
investment, at fair value BATER (29,888)
Impairment of an available-for-sale A HEREZRE"
investment, at cost A (15,540)
Changes in fair value of REMERNTERELE
investment properties (5,477)
Unallocated expenses RABEZRE (25,892)
Finance costs BEKA (5.829)
Profit before tax from SELEXEL
continuing operations B 1 A4 71 757
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

IR

4, REHIBEE @)

Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HER
FEENH ETEM 8% Hith &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAL FAT FET THL
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE_Z-1F
=A=+-BLFE
Segment revenue: 7 b :
Sales to external customers and RNRERHER
revenue from continuing operations FELEEB Y& 1,893,089 62,802 = 1,799 1,957,690
Segment results PHEE 3,443 (10,898) (74,987) (37,099) (119,541)
Reconciliation: HiR:
Bank interest income BRITHEHA 187
Dividend income from IHREZREBA
listed investments 951
Rental income HE WA 2,909
Share of profits of joint ventures PEEELE RN 94,209
Share of profits and losses of associates 7 {7 % A A1 F & B518 (1,202)
Gain on disposal of items of property, ~ HENE BER
plant and equipment BUEE e 29
Gain on deemed disposal of REME—RBE AR
an associate Yizs 11,220
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—MBERTZER (222)
Write-off of other receivables s E o IR (23,980)
Provision for amounts due JEM & D R SR B
from associates (654)
Changes in fair value of RENEATEECE
investment properties (380)
Unallocated expenses KPR ZEZ (4,739)
Finance costs BEKA (8,626)
Loss before tax from RELE£BL
continuing operations BiAEE (49,839)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
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ReEDIER (|)

Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HER
YERNH ETER flR Hit it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL THL TAT TAT FAT
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-E-KE
ZA=t+-HLEE
Segment assets AHEE 491,086 91,121 78,969 859 662,035
Reconciliation: #Hi:
Elimination of intersegment receivables Tfﬁfﬁ DA EKE (277,195)
Investments in joint ventures REERECRE 370,153
Investments in associates E/‘Eﬁﬁ BRARZIRE 22,439
Corporate and other unallocated assets AR R EM AP B EE 107,082
Total assets EELE 884,514
Segment liabilities FHEE 54,251 135,630 121,844 22,289 334,014
Reconciliation: Hi:
Elimination of intersegment payables Tfﬁfﬁ DEEER A (277,195)
Corporate and other unallocated ARREMKRAEER
liabilities 170,133
Total liabilities RELE 226,952
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE-Z-1F
ZA=+-BILEE
Segment assets DHEE 753,749 94,485 115,103 9,172 972,509
Reconciliation: Hi:
Elimination of intersegment receivables Tﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁfir WsroE (313,339)
Investments in joint ventures i) %ﬁ%z&é 213,388
Investments in associates Wﬁ?%@ Al R A 13,522
Corporate and other unallocated assets AR R EM AP B EE 254,024
Total assets BEMLE 1,140,104
Segment liabilities AHaRE 100,206 131,887 169,298 16,673 418,064
Reconciliation: HER:
Elimination of intersegment payables ?ﬁfﬁ“*ﬁfﬂﬁgﬁ FOE (313,339
Corporate and other unallocated RAREMKARAE
liabilities 381,213
Total liabilities RERE 485,938
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REFILER )
Other segment information: Hipp MER:
Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HEE
YERNH ETER AR Htt it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAL THL FHBL THL
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-2-R%
ZA=t-HLEE

Depreciation & 2,382 24 457 - 2,823
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ H A EF A E 2 # 2,080 17 - 1,880 3,977
Provision for impairment of inventories 175 Z il {E Bt 1,535 431 - - 1,966
Impairment of other intangible assets ~ EfEFEE ZHE - - - 4,700 4,700
Impairment of trade receivables, net FEWE SRR MBS S 1,664 1,429 - - 3,093
Recovery of bad debts qmh=i 3 (542) (15) - = (557)
Impairment of an available-for-sale AR ERE ZRE"

investment, at fair value BATEE 29,888
Impairment of an available-for-sale AHEERE 2 RE:

investment, at cost AR 15,540
Impairment of investments NeErEREL

in joint ventures E 28,799
Write-off of other receivables s E R RIR 3N
Capital expenditure* BARRZ 58 - 1,308 = 1,366
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE-_T-1f

=R _Jr BIEEE

Depreciation e 2,895 164 656 = 3,715
Unallocated depreciation KRB ZTE 5
Amortisation of other intangible assets - A & & & 2 B 8 2,241 2,909 - 1,940 7,090
Provision for impairment of inventories 75 Z i E R & 2,595 634 = = 3,229
Impairment of trade receivables, net EWREGRFZREFE 236 953 = = 1,189
Bad debts written off B IE 1,021 - - - 1,021
Impairment of investments REEREZREL

in joint ventures AE 15,376
Write-off of other receivables Mo E o eI ROR 23,980
Provision for amounts due JEM & D R SR B

from associates 654
Impairment of goodwill YA = = = 22,297 22,297
Capital expenditure® BARRZ 2,427 = = - 2,427
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. * BAALBRANEVE BEKE&E-

98

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 &



(a)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REFWBER @)
Geographical information b & & R

Revenue from external customers (a) REIRBEE2ZWE
2016 2015
—XE —hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong BB 185,061 730,183
Singapore N 704,787 1,086,534
Korea EB1 147,175 140,973
1,037,023 1,957,690

(b)

Information about major customers attributable to
semiconductor distribution

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based

EiFEEEEB 2 MR B R R

on the locations of the customers. HFHE o

Non-current assets (b) FRBEE
2016 2015
—~E —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Hong Kong BE 411,249 273,261
Mainland China R (A3 91,754 90,421
Singapore 0 27,576 34,149
Korea FRE 34,061 16,893
564,640 414,724

The non-current assets information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments.

LERFRBEEENREEMEAE

EPTEESRIA

FHR¥ERIHIERF2ER

2016 2015

S —AnF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FRT FBT

Customer A BEPA 40,562 274,554
Customer B %PB 139,121 216,778
179,683 491,332
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after

allowances for returns and trade discounts, during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing

W sk - E A R Wi

Wi AFEERERERTNE CHEREF

B

FEREEB 2 W Bl AR a2 547 40

operations is as follows: T:
2016 2015
—E-AEF —ZE—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Revenue &=
Semiconductor distribution F B 5 992,466 1,893,089
Consumer electronic product sales HERSETEMEE 41,682 62,802
Others Hith 2,875 1,799
1,037,023 1,957,690
Other income and gains H g A R Uz
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 389 187
Recovery of bad debts 1 [0 52 Bk 557 =
Dividend income from listed investments MR & Z i B Ug A 46 951
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale &R ERE 2 WS
investments - 227
Gain on disposal of items of property, EEWE HERZEEB 2 W
plant and equipment 155 29
Trademark licence income from —EEE R a2 IR ERA
an associate 389 544
Rental income He WA 5,361 2,909
Others Hi 885 2,207
7,782 7,054
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31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBiRDEF (&i8)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations is arrived NEBBECEER RSN, (FE)E
at after charging/(crediting): (Gt
2016 2015
—E-AREF —E—nF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 5E FET FH&T
Cost of inventories sold*** SHE R AR *** 989,979 1,860,804
Provision for impairment of FEZ B ERE
inventories*** 1,966 3,229
Depreciation e 13 2,823 3,720
Amortisation of other intangible E b & B 2 B
assets** 16 3,977 7,090
Impairment of other intangible HEMEREE 2 RE:
assets* 16 4,700 -
Impairment of trade receivables, FEUE 5 BR R 2 B S EE*
net* 21 3,093 1,189
Bad debts written off* AR B - 1,021
Write-off of other receivables* i 81 B b B 5k IE 311 23,980
Impairment of goodwill* R B> 15 - 22,297
Minimum lease payments under BEEEHEEZ
operating leases &EHEEHIE 3,563 3,682
Auditors’ remuneration (2 Gl 3,851 2,938
Staff costs (including directors’ BTA (BIEEEH
remuneration — note 8) —FIE8)
Wages, salaries and other TE FekEAgzER
allowances 50,223 65,735
Equity-settled share option RIEEEERERS
expense* 2,765 6,331
Pension scheme contributions RIRE FH B 1,855 2,964
54,843 75,030

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 &% 101



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

n/'ﬁ

B IR ERR MR

31 March 2016 —E—X~"F=A=+—H

6.

102

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBIATEF (&) @
2016 2015
—E—XREF —ZE—hF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B & FTER FHET
Fair value losses, net: N EEEBEFE:
Equity investments at fair value FRBRERATEBEYIRZ
through profit or loss fRARI& &
— held for trading —FHEE&E 18,113 11,013
— designated as such upon —RYIE TR 18 E
initial recognition Ut R 174 39,216
Foreign exchange differences, net*  JMNE =58/ F5E* 5,000 (463)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of available- HERI{EHERE 2
for-sale investments* BE, (Wa) * 7,338 (227)
Impairment of an available-for-sale ~ AJ{H &% & Z E1E
investment, at fair value* BRAFEE 19(b) 29,888 -
Impairment of an available-for-sale ~ AJ{ H &% & Z E1E
investment, at cost* R AN 19(d) 15,540 =
Gain on deemed disposal of an RIELE— M & A a2 =
associate - (11,220)
Loss on disposal of an associate Hj’% Bk NGl - 222
Impairment of investments REEtEIREZRES
in joint ventures* 28,799 15,376
Provision for amounts due from JE UGBSt o X T RIS 4
associates* 18 - 654
Gain on derecognition of financial &R IFFERM S ERETZ
guarantee obligation* Wz > (28,799) (15,376)
Direct operating expenses (including WL EMEFREL 2
repairs and maintenance) arising =~ HEE&ERY
on rental-earning investment  (BIE#EMIRE)
properties 1,184 942
o These balances are included in “Other expenses, net” on the face of the & RERBARTFTAGEBRRZ [EMthERFRE] -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

*x This balance is included in “Administrative expenses”

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

***  These balances are included in “Costs of sales” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.
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FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAE

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as follows: BEKEEBZBEREAZDWIT
2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest on bank and other borrowings 1T R E A fE 2 F B 5,585 8,289
Interest on mortgage loans RBERZFE 222 309
Interest on finance lease MEHREZFE 22 28
5,829 8,626

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

ESFMRAEUTMES 2REE

EEHMH
R EWRA BE R RIEHIE383(1)@) (b) (©
RMERAR (BBEEHEEN) RO B8

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information BIAFESEEHMAOT
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2016 2015
—NE —ZET—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Fees we 300 300
Other emoluments: HEMe
Salaries, housing and other e FEREMELNR
allowances, and benefits in kind RS 13,091 13,190
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIGER 335 341
13,426 13,531
13,726 13,831
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year are as follows:

EEFMR AT RSZES
()

EEHFM (A

(@) BIFHTES

REEXNTHEIFNTESF 2SN
T

2016 2015

—NE —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP SRAEEE L sBs AT ML 100 100
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman Charles Edward Chapman?t 4 100 100
Mr. Wong Ka Kit ERELE 100 100
300 300

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

FRLEEMENBIIEATESTZME

non-executive directors during the year (2015: Nil). (ZZ2—AF 8|)-
(b) Executive directors (b) HITE=E
Salaries,
housing and
other
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme Total
in kind contributions remuneration
e EER
H{th 2R, ERE
DR BRI = sHEI At E 0 PR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
2016 et - B
Executive directors: WITES:
Dr. So Yuk Kwan FEHELT 6,339 49 6,388
Mr. So Chi On BEREE 4,695 234 4,929
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (note (i) BB EAE (FIEEI)) 720 36 756
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny (note (i)) BRED 2 S (PRTEEG)) 400 8 408
Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher BB A (FFEG))
(note (ii)) 937 8 945
13,091 335 13,426
2015 —E-HfF
Executive directors: HITES:
Dr. So Yuk Kwan BmEnEL 6,487 88 6,575
Mr. So Chi On BEREE 4,695 235 4,930
Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher MBBELE 2,008 18 2,026
13,190 341 13,531
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)
Notes:

(i) Directors were appointed on 2 November 2015. The disclosed
emoluments for individual director represent the emoluments received
or receivable after the appointment of directorship on 2 November
2015.

(ii) Director resigned on 31 August 2015.

There was no other arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2015: Nil).

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2015:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two non-director, highest
paid employees (one of them was appointed as director in the current
year) (2015: two) for the year are as follows:

e PR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

ESFMROUFHRS 2REE
(%)

EEHM (8
(b) BITEE(H)
e

@) BEEDR_E-AF T A-HEZRE-
HENEERBECHEER _—"FT—0F
T—H-BREZEREFRENIEEZ

(i) EERN_ZT-AFN\H=1T—H#EHE-

FA EERERBEAEMLFRES
REREEMFH(—F—0F &) -

AuFMESZEE

FR AN FHER 2 EERE = (=ZF—F
Frof)EE HFBIFESN L FREH
MU FHER 2 EEEREE (BRI CRAF
ERZTAES) (ZT—HF W) 2FB
BT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 ZAL R EWHZR

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—AhF
HK$"000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
3,730 7,473

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FMNAFATEAN 2 FHERFESREE ZAH
R

Number of employees

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

1,000,001/ 7T & 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001/ 7T 2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 7T 22,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
5,000,0017 7T &5,500,0007% 7T

EEAH
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
1 —
= 1
1 —
= 1
2 2
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INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated

Fri&®

FEMNE %RJHEH*$¢TE?R§F‘EZ¢EJF§H%

s AR E16.5% (=

—FHHF:16.5% )&

Bife e E1@ﬂﬂlﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁiﬁéfﬂ2ﬁlﬁﬂ%ﬁ$%@,@

at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group EEBMERAERE RtH-
operates.
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Current — Hong Kong BNHA— &%
Charge for the year REEZH - 353
Current — Elsewhere BIVER — B 3t &=
Charge for the year REEZH 95 1,226
Underprovision/(overprovision) NEFEERETR/
in prior years (FBEERAE) (10) 333
Deferred iR E (1,474) (1,348)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year REEZHIESH, (KE)4R5E (1,389) 564
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INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss)
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

8%t (&
RAAATREABHHEA M EEEY
EREBESE Y BBATRF, () ER R

Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax BEXE (e BRERBEFEZHES M
charge/(credit) at the effective tax rate is as follows: S (HER) ZHERINT :
2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing FECEES 2

operations B ALE R, (Ei8) 757 (49,839)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% RIEEME16.5%

(2015: 16.5%) (ZE—H%:165%)

HE A 125 (8,223)

Effect of different tax rates HEMAEEERRER 28

in other jurisdictions (720) 186
Profits and losses attributable EEPEREE AT

to joint ventures and associates FE(R @ A & 518 (27,577) (15,346)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of 5 B33 A B EARL A 2 A&

previous periods (10) 333
Income not subject to tax BAERBRITA (1,349) (2,723)
Expenses not deductible for tax EIE L b 10,223 18,731
Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 RIEEE 17,367 8,339
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B i@ & HAR 2 i E & 18 - (1,392)
Others HAh 552 659
Tax charge/(credit) for the year NEERELH, (FKE) (1,389) 564

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures and associates amounting
to HK$31,370,000 (2015: HK$20,124,000) and HK$910,000 (2015:

Nil), respectively, is included in

“Share of profits and losses of joint

ventures and associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DEEELCRRBERRZEERED R
31,370,000/ 7T ( =& — A 4F : 20,124,000/ 7T )
%910,0008 T (ZF—H % : &) Bt AKAE
Baxz [DE6 B R E A RN®N REE]
Ao
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group disposed of the
operation of the Group’'s SOUL® headphone business to focus its
resources on the semiconductor distribution business. Hence, the SOUL®
headphone business was presented as a discontinued operation for the

year ended 31 March 2015.

The results of the discontinued operation for the year ended 31 March

2015 are presented below:

10. ERLKEEER
REE-FT-BF=A=+-BLFE A4EHE
i HSOULCE M 3 75 4048 - JA SR 7 A2 8
@RS A SOULH A 25 AR E
—AF=ASt+-BULFEZERIEES
f%o

ERIIREEBBRE T —AF=A=1+—81t
FRZFHAEZINWT:

HK$'000
FH&IT
Revenue and other income Wz & E AU 7,731
Cost of sales and expenses HEKRARFAX (21,600)
Loss before tax from the discontinued operation B4R S B ETE 2 BT AT E 1R (13,869)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERNBRARZEBRE (669)
Loss for the year from the discontinued operation ERIEREER 2 FNEE (14,538)
The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation for the year HE_Z-—AF=A=+—RIIFREKILKSE
ended 31 March 2015 are as follows: XBEFCBRERBFHEMOT :
HK$'000
FH&T
Operating activities and net cash outflow KRR LIRS R FEE (13,495)

Loss per share:
Basic, from the discontinued operation
Diluted, from the discontinued operation

FREE
EA RADKIEREER
B RADKRIERERR

HK6.14 cents/& 1l
HK6.13 cents/& 1l

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from the HE-_T—RAF=-A=+—HIEFEKREELKIE
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 March 2015 were based w %%ZHx%$&%/§%TEE$ETJ§MT§M§
on: FE:
Loss attributable to owners of REBRIEREXK 2

the Company from the discontinued operation KRAREB AEILER HK$44,703,0005% 7T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RAUAFTEEREREE 2

in issue during the year used in the basic loss FAB BT RRINE

per share calculation (note 12) T (KEE12) 728,388,616
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used UG E GREEEIE 2

in the diluted loss per share calculation (note 12) TimAR N a8 (H5E12) 728,847,558
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

Details of the net assets of the disposal group disposed of during the

11.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

10. CRUIEEEERE @)

KRE—T—

=A=+t—BILFEHEZH

year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows: EHERIEEREFBWT
HK$'000
FAT
Inventories FE 10,605
Other intangible assets Bt EE 259
Due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR R R Y /8 A B3R 4,830
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K 4,612
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TET IR ~ RS I E R IE 11,690
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERBERIER 3,401
Trade payables and accrued expenses BNESERRESER (6,858)
Non-controlling interest AR = (984)
27,555
Fair value of investments retained upon disposal REERRB2REZATER
reclassified to investment in an associate BEMOEAER—HBERRZERE (1,235)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRRZBE (669)
Total consideration BRE 25,651
Satisfied by: AR
Other receivable H fth FE U R IE 25,651

An analysis of the net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents for
the year ended 31 March 2015 in respect of the disposal of the above

BE-Z-AF=A=1t—RLFEHE LM

BAT B4 REEESER B R EES

subsidiaries is as follows: T
HK$'000
FHET
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of and FAtERERERRLEBA K
net outflow of cash and cash equivalents HEMBARIZEER
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ZRBELBA ML FER (3,401)

DIVIDEND 1.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2015, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period.

8=,
BE_Z-—R"F=A=+—HEKZZ—AF=H
=+ B FEREIR N SRR M ERARE
B 3 & H R A SR A R TR B AR AR AT AR B,
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12.

110

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts is based
on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 772,944,419
(2015: 728,388,616) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per share amounts is
based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as
used in the basic earnings/(loss) per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amount
presented for the year ended 31 March 2016 in respect of a dilution as
the impact of the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic earnings per share amount presented.
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is based

(E8) @@

. BABEAAREERER

BREAREBRF, (BIB) HRE AT 8UE

on: FTE:
2016 2015
—NE —ET—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Earnings/(loss) BR, (Eﬂﬁ)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of AAGEEREARR
the Company, used in the basic ﬁﬁféﬁﬂ/ (18| z
and diluted earnings/(loss) per RATHES AEG
share calculation: wmFL (BE)
From continuing operations REFFELEET 2,147 (49,584)
From a discontinued operation RE DR IEEE T - (44,703)
2,147 (94,287)
Number of shares
RHEE
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—RF
Shares idvi)
Weighted average number of ordinary FAAGtE FRERRF
shares in issue during the year used (BR) zERERITERR
in the basic earnings/(loss) per share hniEF 19 2
calculation 772,944,419 728,388,616
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEre—TER
number of ordinary shares: N8
Share options AR 1 = 458,942
772,944,419 728,847,558
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % -BERRE
Leasehold Land and Furniture,
land and buildings fittings
buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor
(Hong Kong)* ~ Hong Kong)*  improvements equipment vehicles Total
THRETF
HETHR (AU HE  ARCHER
BF(F8) HE)* NERE BAERE RE i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TR TR TR TR TR
31 March 2016 ~2-xE=B=1-AH
At 31 March 2015 and RZE-RE=A=T-HEK

1 April 2015; “E-HEmA-H:

Cost AR 39,567 11,905 7333 7,204 12,836 78,845

Accumulated depreciation 2HE (9,284) (2,568) (6,773) (6,660) (11,065) (36,350)

Net carrying amount REFE 30,283 9,337 560 544 1,11 42,495
At 1 April 2015, net of RZZE-RENA-H"

accumulated depreciation NR2:NE 30,283 9,337 560 544 1,11 42,495
Additions AE = - 52 6 1,308 1,366
Disposals & - - - (11) (461) (472)
Depreciation provided during the year EREBZNE (Hzo)

(note 6) (923) (677) (153) (262) (808) (2,823)
Exchange realignment AR - 39 - (1) 1 39
At 31 March 2016, net of RZE-—7RE=A=1-8"

accumulated depreciation NREGE 29,360 8,699 459 276 1,811 40,605
At 31 March 2016: RZE-r"F=ZA=1+—H:

Cost R 39,567 11,99 1326 7,107 11,559 77,555

Accumulated depreciation ZithE (10,207) (3,297) (6,867) (6,831) (9,748) (36,950)

Net carrying amount REFE 29,360 8,699 459 276 1811 40,605
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
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13. ME BERRE @

Leasehold Land and Furniture,
land and buildings fittings Plant,
buildings (outside Leasehold and office machinery Motor
(Hong Kongf* ~ Hong Kong)*  improvements equipment and tools vehicles Total
THRET
HELHR (BB BE KHRER BE
BT (B8) )¢ NEXE  HAER BERIE "E At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FHET THT THAL THL T FiET
31 March 2015 ZB-RIFZBZ1-H
At 1 April 2014: RZZ2-MEMA-R:

Cost A 38410 2AM7 6,693 7,1% 185 15,535 93,036

Accumulated depreciation ZithE (8,364) (5,265) (6,619) (6,892) (185) (12,692) (40,017)

Net carrying amount REFE 30,046 19,152 74 904 - 2,843 53,019
At 1 April 2014, net of “Z-mERA-H:

accumulated depreciation MR 2:E 30,046 19,152 74 904 - 2,843 53,019
Additions NE 1,157 - 640 52 - 578 2,427
Disposals & = = - ) = (356) (358)
Surplus on revaluation on transfer to ERERENE ERRR

investment properties - 35,712 - - - - 35712
Transfer to investment properties BEEREWE (MzH14)

(note 14) - (43,875) - - - - (43,875)
Depreciation provided during the year  FR&ME 2 I7E (Hizk6)

(note 6) (920) (921) (154) (353) - (1,372) (3,720)
Exchange realignment 5 - (731) - (57) - 78 (710)
At 31 March 2015, net of RZE-A%=A=1+-R"

accumulated depreciation MR EGE 30,283 9,337 560 544 - 1771 42,495
At 31 March 2015: “E-RF=ZA=1-H:

Cost KA 39,567 11,905 7333 7,04 - 12,836 78,845

Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (9,284) (2,568) (6,773) (6,660) - (11,065) (36,350)

Net carrying amount FEFE 30,283 9,337 560 544 - 1,771 42,495
# As the land lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and # AR T HEENREEE LM REFH S HEAE

buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

The net carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
held under finance leases included in the total amount of motor vehicles
at 31 March 2016 was HK$657,000 (2015: HK$212,000).

oy e Fit 2 BEE MR AL RBFR
N ERYME BERREREHE-

RZBE—RNF=ZA=+—HB AEZHABEEERN
SERERETMERBEZME BEREEZ
BR ] )F 88657,000/8 7T ( =& — A 4F : 212,000
JL) ©
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14.

114

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. REYE

2016 2015

— —ZE—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Carrying amount at beginning of year FUZEEERE 121,891 80,764
Transfer from property, ER AV RERZE

plant and equipment (note 13) (MF5E13) - 43,875
Changes in fair value of RENMELNTEBEZEH

investment properties (5,477) (380)

Exchange realignment PE % 348 (2,368)

Carrying amount at end of year FRIZERSE 116,762 121,891

The Group's investment properties consist of one residential property
in Hong Kong, four office properties and several serviced apartments in
Mainland China and one residential property in Singapore. The directors
of the Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of three classes of asset, i.e., residential properties, office properties
and serviced apartments, based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of each property. The Group's investment property in Hong Kong
was revalued on 31 March 2016 based on valuation performed by
Centaline Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer, at HK$5,150,000. The Group’'s investment properties in
Shenzhen and Chengdu were revalued on 31 March 2016 based
on valuations performed by Roma Appraisals Limited and Prudential
Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at HK$66,375,000 and HK$25,362,000, respectively. The
Group's investment property in Singapore was revalued on 31 March
2016 based on valuation performed by ECG Consultancy Pte. Ltd.,
independent professionally qualified valuer, at HK$19,875,000. Each
year, the Group’s chief financial officer decides to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group's properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s chief financial officer has discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuations are performed for annual financial reporting.
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£ uﬁAEPlﬂqimzmlﬁfbw‘*%%&yﬁﬂ&%
NABARMRAFINEZ —BEEDE - AR
EFRA EBREWEZHE BHERAR ~;z
EREMENE D A=REE MEEME B
REMERBBRALABE -AKBNREBZEE
%%Hﬂﬁiﬁ%wﬁfmﬁ@ﬁﬂiﬁh%5&5”%%??%@

ARRETHEE RZE—A"FE=A=1+—HEMH
#%5,150,0007%8 7T © N BAL ORI K Bl &R 2 12 &
MERBUSECEARGEMBESERIGHE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 35(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2016, the Group's investment properties with a carrying
value of HK$86,250,000 (2015: HK$90,416,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 26(i)).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on
page 172.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group's investment properties:

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

14. BEWZE @)

REMEDRBLEZFHERTE=7 £—FH
R BHRN G M B MK M FE35(@)

RZE—R"E=ZA=+—H8 A5EEKEE
86,250,000/ 7t (=& — A 4F : 90,416,000/ 7T )
ZREMEE TER ERRTAEE 2 —RKRIR
TEEZER (H5E260)) °

BRAEERANEE—SHERNE 1728 -
DAFEESRRE

TRIIFHABEARBREMEAFEEZIEMR
®:

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2016 using

FER-E-RE=ZA=+-HZAVEEEKER

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EBTS EXTEBE EATTEE

ZHE BAE BWAE
(5—-18) (5=8) ($=8) Ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TERT

Recurring fair value measurement for: THREZ LT
AFBEFE:

Residential properties FEME - - 25,025 25,025
Office properties WMREME - - 66,375 66,375
Serviced apartments RBEAAE - - 25,362 25,362
- - 116,762 116,762
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31 March 2016 —E—X~"F=A=+—H

14.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. BEWHE @)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

D EESFRERSE (B

Fair value measurement

as at 31 March 2015 using

FER-E-RF=A=+—-B2ZoTEERKEH
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REET 5 BAAHE EATIEHR
ZRE BAE BWAE
(F—&) (=) (=) CEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT FET
Recurring fair value measurement for: THREZ &L
AFEEFE:
Residential properties FEME - - 31,516 31,516
Office properties MAEME - - 65,000 65,000
Serviced apartments RBEAAE - = 25,375 25,375
- - 121,891 121,891

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2015: Nil).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of

BEYE @)

D EESFHRERSE (B

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

DERAFEESERRBE=ZE2 A FEEFE

the fair value hierarchy: AR
Residential Office Serviced
properties properties apartments
ey MAEYE BREXAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHEIT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2014 RZZE—MFMA—HZ
RE© R 34,389 21,075 25,300
Transfer from property, EHEEYE BER
plant and equipment (note 13) & (FEE13) = 43,875 =
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value RIEABERAERZ
adjustment recognised in the NEEERAE
consolidated statement of Wik, (E18)F58
profit or loss (505) 50 75
Exchange realignment PE 3 A (2,368) = =
Carrying amount at 31 March 2015 RZZE—RF=A=+—8BK
and 1 April 2015 —ET-RFMA—H
ZREeRE 31,516 65,000 25,375
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value RéreBam kAR
adjustment recognised in the N EEFAE
consolidated statement of Wz, (B518) F 58
profit or loss (6,839) 1,375 (13)
Exchange realignment DE 57, 38 2L 348 - -
Carrying amount at 31 March 2016 R=-Z—X<"E=A=+—HZ
REEHE 25,025 66,375 25,362
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14.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

14. REWE @)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) REEEERES ()

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs WEYEGER A2 MERTREZEH A BT
to the valuation of investment properties: PUNNE

Valuation Significant Value/Range
techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
fh B 1l EXFTBERGAE e EE (EF)
Residential property situated Market comparison Adjusted unit price HK$9,590
in Hong Kong approach (per square foot) (2015: HK$11,359)
REEZEETHE WIS BUE KRB EN(ER 9,590/ 7T
(B8F¥AR) —HF : 11,359%7T)

Residential property situated
in Singapore

IR I 2 (EEW

Office properties situated
in Mainland China

(VR NGENCTp: g NEL /3

Serviced apartments situated
in Mainland China
as at 31 March 2016

RZB—RF=ZA=+—

H
MNRPEALZ R RS

Serviced apartments situated
in Mainland China
as at 31 March 2015
RZF-—AF=A=1+—

H
MNRPEALZ R RS

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Market comparison
approach

[EE 142975

Market comparison
approach

[EE 142975

Income approach

WA

Market comparison
approach

[EE 142975

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

KRB (ERS
(BF77K)

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

KRB (ERS
(BF77K)

Estimated rental value
(per square meter and

per month)
Term yield
Reversionary yield

CREEE

(B¥HAEEA)

FH R
B W

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

EREEG B
(SFHK)

SGD18,649

(2015: SGD24,324)
18,6493 7T

— R F:24,324%70)

RMB53,059

(2015: RMB51,960)

AR #53,0597TC
(Z=—R%F:
AR#51,9607T)

RMB65 to RMB94

3.5%

4.0%

ARB65TTE ARKE4TT

3.5%
4.0%

RMB 18,660

AR #18,6607T
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the income approach, the properties are valued by taking into
account the current rents passing or the hypothetical rents and the
reversionary potential of the tenancies if the properties have been or
would be leased to tenants.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and
outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease renewal
and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment. The appropriate
duration is driven by market behaviour that is a characteristic of
the class of property. The periodic cash flow is estimated as gross
income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses, collection losses,
lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and
other operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal value
anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the term yield
and reversionary yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties. Generally,
a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the term yield and
reversionary yield.

Under the market comparison approach, the properties are valued on
the market basis assuming sales in their existing state with the benefit
of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based on
prices realised in actual transactions or asking prices of comparable
properties. Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the
differences between such properties in terms of age, time, location,
floor level and other relevant factors.

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

14. BEWZE @)

DNPEEFRERE (B

RBEAE HOXELXBELHATES ¥
FARERTHEIREESANEEEREE
N&ETHE-

ﬁ%//\bﬁﬁﬁﬁlf/{&/ﬂb //Ihﬁzﬁ HTF%}EEE%EQ
WE BELAMBRE ERNEESENE
EEEHRREMEMBER 2 TISIT R

E-EHHRERERGWAREER A kM
Sﬁii‘ﬂﬁl@iaﬁi HE R wERA KERA
ERANREMEEREEERGE - BETEH
BB F R E [ TR A TR R B R A R A Z (A AT
REHZBIR -

AT EERZE LA (TR SEBRENERT
EBEEZ LT (TR - FHE R ES R 185
BELA(TRRASEBRENELTEER
ETE (L) - — R E - A EERRZED
EEBUST Rz ERkam R ERKRSEES-

BRETISLEE MERTSELETHE &
PREBEARAZEHE W2 R TI5 A EF
ZABLBIHEBE LBIABRRS58BB2E
RAATE LB MEZ WELER -BRERER
FHEE HE Uit RMEER BR- GE 2
EREMBARAREER-
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15.
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GOODWILL 15. B8
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
At beginning of year: F1 -
Cost B 32,780 32,780
Accumulated impairment EFRIE (22,297) =
Net carrying amount AREHER 10,483 32,780
At beginning of year, F9) MR REHRE
net of accumulated impairment 10,483 32,780
Impairment during the year (note 6) FERFE (HEE6) - (22,297)
At end of year, FR Mk REHRE
net of accumulated impairment 10,483 10,483
At end of year: FR:
Cost B A 32,780 32,780
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (22,297) (22,297)
Net carrying amount AREEER 10,483 10,483

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recognised an
impairment of goodwill of HK$22,297,000 for the mobile application
development business because of the decline of operating performance.
There was no impairment of goodwill recognised for the year ended 31
March 2016.

Impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible
assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets acquired through business
combination are allocated to the cash-generating unit (“CGU") of
the semiconductor distribution business and the mobile application
development business for impairment testing.

Semiconductor distribution business

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 10.0% (2015:
10.0%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
semiconductor distribution business beyond the five-year period is 3.5%
(2015: 3.5%). This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

15. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible
assets (continued)

Mobile application development business

The carrying amount of the CGU included other intangible assets of
HK$4,700,000 (2015: goodwill of HK$22,297,000 and other intangible
assets of HK$6,580,000). The recoverable amount of the CGU has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a six-year period
approved by senior management and was assessed to be nil (2015:
HK$6,300,000).

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 20.0% (2015:
20.0%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
mobile application development business beyond the six-year period is
nil (2015: 3.0%). Nil growth rate was used to extrapolate the cash flows
because management expected that the growth of the CGU will be
stable after the six-year period.

The directors have consequently determined to recognise an impairment
loss on other intangible assets (2015: goodwill) directly related to the
mobile application development business amounting to HK$4,700,000
(2015: HK$22,297,000) during the year. The main factor contributing
to the impairment was the decrease in profit forecasts of the mobile
application development business estimated by the directors of the
Company.

Key assumptions

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
semiconductor distribution business and mobile application
development business for 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased or
expected efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on budgeted gross margins
and discount rates are consistent with external information sources.

15.

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

mE (J|)
BERAEMERTEERENR (4

FHREREABRER
BeEABN RO ERREMEREE
4,700,000 7T ( == — A F : ;522,297,000
7T R H b 4 2 & #E6,580,000/8 TT) c IS EAE
e BERBERABETEES Lok
EBEEZEZ A NFHUBBEAERIERSRE
TERIEE - Wb A& (ZZ — A4 : 6,300,000
/%71)

R BB 28R % 5200% (ZF
4£:20.0%) < F A B 5 7 IR 16 2 F 78 R
BAREEFAS B HEEAT (“F X
F:3.0%)  MNEREREPR G EE B
RRAFHMMGAGRETR WA R E
HEEARE-

FN EEHBATHEREFHEREAMAE
XBEREBEEZEMEREE(ZS—RF:
&) 2R EE 184,700,000 T (— T —FHF:
22,297,000 7T) cBHREZ T EZBEZAAR
RIEE AT T AR R ER 28 R

o

FER/R
RAE T REF=-A=+—BRk-_ZT—AF=
A=+ —H+ERAHEB R FHEREAME

¥ ERABERERARR  TXHAEERE
BUAMEREB S RERAETRENR 2 5E
FERFK:

FEENF-EEMBETREENXBEMALZ
HEESERBEFENFEMNGSZFHERN
B RHAMRBGESIRTTAR TR TSR -

AR E—FTRARIRE AT AII R AR &
TE R o

B B

FTfR FIRE EN R MR KX B RKR 2 HEEIN
BER IR — 2
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS HthBE&EE
Club Customer Mobile
memberships Trademarks relationships application Total
¢ L] EFHE FHREARR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T#x TET TET TEx
31 March 2016 —E-RE=fA=1-H

At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015: RZE-RE=A=+-BRk

“Z-RFNA-A:
Cost KR 4,788 87 24,940 9,400 39,215
Accumulated amortisation and S BEKAE
impairment (1,079) (56) (22,315) (2,820) (26,270)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,709 31 2,625 6,580 12,945

Cost at 1 April 2015, net of accumulated R=Z—RENA—H"

amortisation and impairment TR R RS HRRE 3,709 31 2,625 6,580 12,945
Amortisation provided during the year B {2 % 3 (i 556)

(note 6) (34) (17) (2,046) (1,880) (3,977)
Impairment during the year (note 6) FERRE (KiT6) = = = (4,700) (4,700)
Exchange realignment BEHAE (€) = (67) = (70)
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE—R"E=RA=+—H 3,672 14 512 - 4,198
At 31 March 2016: RZZE-"E=ZA=+-R:

Cost KA 4,799 87 24,703 9,400 38,989

Accumulated amortisation and 2B ERAE

impairment (1,127) (73) (24,191) (9,400) (34,791)

Net carrying amount REFE 3,672 14 512 - 4,198
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31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) HthBEEE @)
Club Customer Mobile
memberships Trademarks relationships application Total
ok 1 XPER  FHERER &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL THL THL THEL THL
31 March 2015 “E-Rf=fA=1-H
At 1 April 2014; RZZE—NEMA—A:
Cost AR 4,903 780 25,423 9,400 40,506
Accumulated amortisation and ZEtBERAE
impairment (1,101) (408) (17,593) (940) (20,042)

Net carrying amount REFR 3,802 37 7,830 8,460 20,464
Cost at 1 April 2014, net of accumulated R=Z—WFMA—H -

amortisation and impairment BRI 2R KA E 3,802 37N 7,830 8,460 20,464
Disposals HE - (260) = - (260)
Amortisation provided during the year A Bfa 2 #34 (Fifz6)

(note 6) (36) (81) (5,093) (1,880) (7,090)
Exchange realignment B A% (57) = 112) = (169)
At 31 March 2015 R-ZF-A%=RA=+—H 3,709 31 2,625 6,580 12,945
At 31 March 2015: RZZE-RF=f=+—A:

Cost KA 4,788 87 24,940 9,400 39,215

Accumulated amortisation and 2 #ERAE

impairment (1,079) (56) (22,315) (2,820) (26,270)

Net carrying amount REFE 3,709 31 2,625 6,580 12,945

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recognised an
impairment of mobile application of HK$4,700,000 (2015: Nil) for the
mobile application development business because of the decline in
operating performance. Details of the impairment testing are detailed in

note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

REBEE-_Z—XRNF=-ZA=+—"BLEE FLE
REATE AKERFHERRENMEEBRER
F ik AR ZFE4,700,0008 T (ZF—A
F ) ORERHE ZFIEER RS MIS R T
15 ©
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REELEZRE
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Share of net assets NhEEFE 357,287 198,923
Financial guarantees provided (note 28)  1R{EBf R (M 7E28) 12,866 14,465
370,153 213,388
Particulars of the material joint venture are as follows: BREEREFBEOT:
Percentage of
ERil
Place of
incorporation ~ Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name Issued share capital and business interest power sharing  activities
B &
£8 BRITRAE EEWY BAEEER RERE oMERF  ETEER
AVP Electronics Limited* 120,000,000 Hong Kong 75 50 75  Trading of electronic
ordinary shares components
REBRRR* 120,000,0008% EE BEEBFlH
EER
e Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst o WIER BB LKL AN E AT s E b ok BIBR A

& Young global network

The above joint venture has a financial year end of 31 December.
The consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material

transactions between 1 January and 31 March.

AVP Electronics Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “AVPEL
Group”), which are considered a material group of joint ventures of the

Group, are accounted for using the equity method.
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31 March 2016 ZE—X"F=A=+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

REELEZRE @)

TRINTRABREEZMBENUZ (EREFNE

of AVPEL Group adjusted for any differences in accounting policies TR EZEREEHFARE) AR MR N AR
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial & HR:
statements:
2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERBELIER 354,906 279,434
Other current assets HtnEhEE 2,607,949 1,323,175
Current assets mEE E 2,962,855 1,602,609
Non-current assets ERBEE 27,076 24,498
Financial liabilities, excluding cRBE (TEEENESER K
trade and other payables H th FE S 5RIE) (2,378,972) (1,315,098)
Other current liabilities HEMREEE (129,525) (43,528)
Current liabilities RBEE (2,508,497) (1,358,626)
Non-current liabilities EnEaE (142) (59)
Non-controlling interests R (4,910) (3,192)
Net assets attributable to owners of FIEBRAREERA
AVP Electronics Limited (G & EFE 476,382 265,230
Reconciliation to the Group's interests HASEREGERE 2R
in the joint ventures:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBEEB LA 75% 75%
Group's share of net assets attributable AIEBRARERA
to owners of AVP Electronics Limited EhEAEEDEEEFE 357,287 198,923
Financial guarantees provided R IEHER 12,866 14,465
Carrying amount of the investments KERESRE 370,153 213,388
Revenue W 25 15,357,236 7,050,309
Interest income FEUA 68 65
Depreciation e (1,542) (902)
Interest expenses FEEA (44,930) (24,142)
Tax 1A (41,826) (26,832)
Profit for the year F N A 212,868 126,365
Other comprehensive income for the year £ A E i 2 @ WA 2 33
Total comprehensive income for the year & A2 WA 4258 212,870 126,398
Dividends received B AR B - 57,350
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. RBERNTZRE

2016 2015

—E-XE —T—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Share of net assets PIEEEFE 22,439 13,522
Due from associates JiE W Bt & R ) R IE 12,157 20,867
34,596 34,389

Less: Current portion A Jif s (12,157) (20,867)
Non-current portion EmEE D 22,439 13,522

The balances due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of the balances due
from associates approximate to their fair values.

During the year end 31 March 2015, an impairment loss of
HK$654,000 was recognised for amounts due from associates because
the associates have been making losses and the amounts were not
expected to be recovered.

All associates have a financial year end of 31 March, which is
coterminous with that of the Group, except for Me2on Co., Ltd.
("Me2on") which is an associate of the Group incorporated in Korea
and has a financial year end of 31 December. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements are adjusted for the material transactions of Me2on
between 1 January and 31 March.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of
certain associates, namely Xocial Limited, Signeo Venture Limited and
Nitgen Eco Tech Limited because the share of losses of associates
exceeded the Group's interests in these associates and the Group has
no obligation to take up further losses. The amounts of the Group's
unrecognised share of losses of these associates for the current year
and cumulatively were HK$1,271,000 (2015: HK$1,009,000) and
HK$3,109,000 (2015: HK$1,838,000), respectively.
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FEMCE & R RIFRIR 2 SR A BT - TEFRNE
ElE &N - BB ERFFIB AR Z RS
BMEHRNFEEMES

RBE-ZT-—AF=-A=1T—"HLFE EK
Hit 48 N BRI HERR R (BB 18654,0008 7T - REAR
FHENTSRSER mMEBESRERBEZK

BMe2on Co., Ltd. ([Me2on | » REB R ERH T
MRz E AR 2 BRFEFEAEBRT A
=T—H FEBE AR ZMBEEAERY
REZA=1+T—RH HEASEZMBRFELER—
B AREB 2 IiRE MBEHREXE FEMe2ont — A —
AE=A=1t—HZERRZELHAE-

AEEERIEBRESD S THE AR (AEH
AFR AT - Signeo Venture Limited 2 £ R FR
BERAR) Z2BE  REASSEH S QR EIE8
BAEBRZSHERNRIZER  BASETE
EREEE—SBB - AEBAERZOEZE
B ENEZFAREFEEBESES 551,271,000
BT (ZZ—F 41,009,000 7T ) 3,109,000
BT (ZZF—Hh 41,838,000 7T) °
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. REE QT Z2RE W0
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the TRIRALE @R NEKR 2 EE R R 2
Group's associates that are not individually material: BR4AE -
2016 2015
—E-KE —ET—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHEIT
Share of associates’ profit/(loss) DR E AR FERESN S (EE)
for the year 8,771 (1,202)
Share of associates’ total comprehensive o {hE§ & R a2 E
income/(loss) WA/ (E18) 5 8,917 (1,202)
Aggregate carrying amount of AEBERBERRCIREREZRE
the Group's investments
in associates 22,439 13,522
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AIHHERE
2016 2015
—E-REF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHIT
Unlisted equity investments, FEEMRRAIRE IR A (FisEa)
at cost (note a) 3,893 3,893
Unlisted equity investment, FEETRARE R AFEE
at fair value (note b) (Kt3EDb) - 60,994
Key management insurance contracts, FTEEBASRREH
at fair value (note ) BATEE (MisEc) 20,891 13,639
Convertible promissory note, AR A, R - RN (P sEd )
at cost (note d) 15,540 15,540
Impairment (notes a and d) BB (MisEakd) (19,433) (3,893)
20,891 90,173
The above investments consist of investments in unlisted equity Ll EREIERERHEEREZIE LT
investments, key management insurance contracts and convertible EAIRE T EETEABRBE A 4 KAl AR &,
promissory note, which were designated as available-for-sale ZERE HEEEINHANEEER .
investments and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.
During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group's available-for- FAN-BEANEERNE 2 AR 2] M
sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income amounted HERE 2 #AE51E 530,817,0008 T (ZE—F
to HK$30,817,000 (2015: gross gain of HK$491,000). F 18I E5491,00075 L) °
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

128

Notes:

(@)

()

As at 31 March 2016, certain unlisted equity investments with a carrying
amount of HK$3,893,000 (2015: HK$3,893,000) were stated at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

At the end of the reporting period, a full provision for impairment
of HK$3,893,000 (2015: HK$3,893,000) was made for available-for-
sale investments with an original carrying value (before impairment) of
HK$3,893,000 (2015: HK$3,893,000) because they have been making loss for
years and had deficiency in assets at the end of the reporting period.

The movement in the provision for impairment during the year is as follows:

19. A ERE @)

o

(@)

RZE—ARF=ZA=1+t—"80 KELBEH
3,893,000/ 7t (== — F 4 : 3,893,000 70) 2
BT HELEMRARE IR AHERRED R R
RAEREGBERAFEEGSZHEEEN E2RA
HERQATFEBETENSME - NEBIT Y &t
B EH & -

RBREAEERS ARNREEE CRER) A
3,893,000/ JT (== — A 4 : 3,893,000/ 7T) Z
A ERE S FRFGEB RN REHEER
KEEEBA HERAELEEREZEELR
B 1#3,893,000/% 7T, ( ==& — A 4 : 3,893,000/
JT) °

FRRERFBZEEHNT

2016 2015

ZE-XRF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At beginning of year F1 3,893 6,623

Write-off 8 = (2,730)
At end of year FR 3,893 3,893
There was a significant decline in the fair value of the unlisted equity investment (b)  FAFLEIRIRE 2 AT EERSENKIE-

during the year. The directors consider that such a decline indicates that
the unlisted equity investment has been impaired and an impairment loss
of HK$29,888,000 (2015: Nil), which included a reclassification from other
comprehensive income of HK$29,888,000 (2015: Nil), has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year (note 6).

As at 31 March 2016, the insurance contracts represented life insurance plans
with investment elements relating to two key management personnels of
the Group. The total sum insured is US$15,800,000 (2015: US$10,000,000)
(approximately HK$122,800,000 (2015: HK$77,700,000)) with an annual
minimum guaranteed return of 2% (2015: 2%).

As at 31 March 2016, if the Group withdrew from the insurance contracts,
the accounts value, net of surrender charges of US$396,973 (approximately
HK$3,084,000) (2015: US$251,560 (approximately HK$1,955,000)), would
be refunded to the Group. The amount of the surrender charges decreases
over time and is no longer required from the 19th year of contract conclusion
onwards.

At 31 March 2016, a key management insurance contract of HK$6,745,000
(2015: HK$13,639,000) classified as an available-for-sale investment was
pledged as security for certain of the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (note 26(iv)).
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EERAZRIEFERIE LT RANEE HERE -
A [E 4R & 1B 7 5k A TSR R (B §51829,888,000
BLT(ZZE—RF: &) EPaEEEB2EK
AEH 5 $8229,888,000E 7T (=T — F4F : &)
GEDE

R-ZE—R"E=A=1+—H RBEHAEEEARN
SEMEEEZERABMTRERD ZATR
T8l - (R 4858 515,800,000 L (= E—H
£ :10,000,000%78) (#%9122,800,000 7T (=
—A% :77,700,000%7T) ) - FERKERELC RS
2% (ZZ—HF:2%) °

RZZTE—AF=ZA=+—H WANEEHR"
BIBREEE (MR RRFEE396,973F T (B
3,084,000/ ) (=Z — A F :251,560% 7T (49
1,955,000%7T) ) K ERETAKE RRFESE
SEEREEMERD BRI EHE19FRTEHK
By o

RZZT—R"E=ZA=+—0 BATHEHEEER
7l ~ {E186,745,0007%8 7T (—ZF— R F : 13,639,000
B2 EZEEBEABRBAENE FIERA  (FAKX
S EE TH B RIT R E 5K (B 5E26(v) ) 2 &
fRe
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

20.

d

The Group held a convertible promissory note with a principal amount of
US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,540,000) (the “PN") which was issued by a
private company.

The PN is unlisted, interest-bearing at 8% per annum and issued for a
maturity term of 6 months from 26 November 2014 to 25 May 2015 which
is indefinitely extendible for another 6 months at the issuer’s discretion. The
Group has the right to convert the PN into 49% of equity interest of the private
company.

The PN was designated as an available-for-sale investment which was stated
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be
measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of it in the near future.

At the end of the reporting period, a full provision for impairment of
HK$15,540,000 (2015: Nil) was made for the PN as in the opinion of the
directors, the PN is not expected to be recovered.

INVENTORIES

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—X"F=A=+—H

19. AAHHERE @

B 5

(d

(%)

AEBREH " BMAARRBEATASEA
2,000,0003 7T (#8E 715,540,000 70 ) 2 ATHRA%
A ER ([ARRA N ER]) -

AMBEERERTIIE LT  FFRBE BRI
RZE-—WF+—A=Z+<BE=T—-AFHA
—+HA L6 A B HER (A B #1T ATE RIS
BER6ER)#ET - AEEAEK AT REALE
BRIBBZMAREZ249% AR 2 -

ARG RIRTY IS E AR AHRBED R Z
AHHERE REERGEATFEEMT 2
IEEK §$§%%EE${“ET“ A SEdET & o R

ERERAE-

RIRE R RS AR ESRABBETEKE
ARRAER R A RRETERE RS
HURE 515,540,000 T (ZT—AF ) °

2t

2016

S
HK$'000
FBT

2015
—hfF
HK$'000
TAT

Finished goods

e
=
B0

69,259 147,155
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21.

130

TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. ERE Z R

2016 2015

—E-XRE —T—AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR3K 70,466 216,375
Impairment B (6,472) (5,316)
63,994 211,059

The Group's trading terms with customers vary with the type of AEBEEPI 2R ESRR T HEZERE

products supplied. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to over 60 days. For customer-specific and highly specialised
items, deposits in advance or letters of credit may be required prior
to the acceptance and delivery of the products. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise
credit risk. A credit committee consisting of senior management and the
directors of the Company has been established to review and approve
large customer credits. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying
amounts of the trade receivables approximate to their fair values.
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

21.

@L&E EEE/TA

RIBNREE A RS BREREG 2 BEE S

period, based on the payment due date, is as follows: AR Z BRI AT IAT
2016 2015
—RE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Current BN HA 52,288 124,135
1 to 30 days 1230H 3,896 62,885
31 to 60 days 31260H 432 14,871
Over 60 days HBiE60H 13,850 14,484
70,466 216,375
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as W E SRR HEREZESHNT
follows:
2016 2015
—NE —hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
At beginning of year F1) 5,316 4,244
Impairment losses recognised EERZREREE 3,093 1,976
Reversal of impairment losses B E R E R - (787)
Amounts written off as uncollectible YE &S B] YR B 3 I8 i 88 (1,895) =
Exchange realignment M 5 A (42) (117)
At end of year FUR 6,472 5,316

The above provision is for individually impaired trade receivables,
with a carrying amount before provision of HK$6,472,000 (2015:
HK$5,316,000), which related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.

MBEE IR EESE (MKREBEEN) A
6,472,000% 70 (=& — A4 : 5,316,000/ L) 2

EERIRERKE SRR MEL ZEREES

EREE R RASE > EFEE BT K
@o
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21.

22.

132

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

21.

ELBZE EIEEZFA (#&)

AR R EE R KA RRE BURE SRR R
AT

2016 2015

—E—XE —T—AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHEIT

Neither past due nor impaired R 180 B K 3 R (E 52,288 124,135
Less than 1 month past due #H D 11E A 3,896 62,885
1 to 3 months past due BmHI1 =318 A 278 14,871
Over 3 months past due 60 HA R 38 31E A 7,532 9,168
63,994 211,059

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

22,

KR8 H K I SR E 2 FE WA B S B R % By AR
ZEFPEH WETMY EIE RO

EaEYERELBERALEE THEARH
BEBERHEFRLHEZBIUTFL B - BREBEARELE
B ARAEERRBARZEERIELRER
w RAREEERUEBABE ARSHY
HARAR 2 AT A B -

ﬁ'ﬁ’a’AIE EQ&E@J@WTA

2016 2015
—RE —T—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Prepayments TEf IR 1,583 2,382
Deposits and other receivables & & H Ath FE U GRIE 9,047 31,517
10,630 33,899

Portion classified as non-current: DEARIERE 2D
Other deposits Hibiz & (466) (491)
Current portion meEnEs s 10,164 33,408

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of deposits
and other receivables approximate to their fair values.
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

e PR R

31 March 2016 —T—XF=H=+—H

EiB R
rE

BAVEENRZBRA

2016 2015

—E—XE —T—AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Investment in an associate (Note) R—EEE QR 218 E (K 55,559 85,750

Managed funds, at market value BEREES KME - 296

Listed equity investments, at market value _Em AR E - L H{E 12,427 3,118
Equity linked debt securities, REHHEBHES RME

at market value 5,008 -

17,435 3,414

72,994 89,164

The above equity investments with a carrying amount of
HK$17,435,000 (2015: HK$3,414,000) at 31 March 2016 were
classified as held for trading.

At 31 March 2015, equity investments amounting to HK$1,777,000
were pledged to secure certain of the Group's interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings (note 26(iii)).

Note:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held a 14.24% (2015: 27.44%) equity
interest in IE Limited (previously known as Integrated Energy Limited) (“IEL"). The
investment in IEL was classified as an investment in an associate as Mr. So Chi On, a
director of the Company, is also the director, the chairman and co-representative of
IEL. Thus, the Group can exercise significant influence over the financial and operating
policies of IEL. As this associate is held as part of venture capital organisation’s
investment portfolio, it is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
fair value. This treatment is permitted by HKAS 28 (2011) “/nvestments in Associates
and Joint Ventures" which requires investments held by venture capital organisations
to be excluded from its scope where those investments are designated, upon initial
recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss and accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 39, with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period of change.

RZE—RNF=ZA=+—H8 LiEELHEAL
17,435,000/ 7t (== — A F : 3,414,000/ 7T)
ZRABE D EBIFEES -

R_ZE—RFE=ZA=+—8" BA&E1,777,000
BILBEER  (EAAREEE TH B RITREA
e Rz PEAR (B sE26(i) ) ©

CEE

RIS HAR A RET - NEERAGIE Limited (AT#EIntegrated
Energy Limited) ([IEL])Z214.24% (=T — R F:
27.44% )R AN HE R - AN AR R EEHE L EETBIEL
ZES ERFBEAR Bl 2NK B A ASIELZ 8155
REBBRITEERTLEN WRIELZREDBABR—
SRR 2R E - BRZEE R B IERAIRAR 2 %
BHE—MoHE W GRS BRARARATEE
PBR o LRI T AN ER B G ERFE28% (=T ——F)
[REEERFIREERESRE ] AT ZEAHREMA
Al ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁkﬁﬁZ&ﬁﬁ’\%ﬂﬁ“ﬁﬁ R EIEE RBERIBRR
’“if“@ﬂ@% WiIEBE B S T ERIFEINRAR  MEA

(S ”@JEAEEHEWZZ?S?Em%%ﬁE R ER
AR EEASE -
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23. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Note: (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information in respect of IEL,
which is considered a material associate of the Group, on the basis of IEL's financial

23. ERBEHBAFEEIIRZEE

BE ()

BaE: (48)

T RIS 7 5 B B KK

RIZIELZ BA TS & R BE

2 AR NIEZ AR REBERS BREL R

statements which were prepared in accordance with Korean International Financial IS MR R
Reporting Standards:

2016 2015
S —2-5n%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
Fax FET
Current assets mENE E 35,510 394,441
Non-current assets IERBEE 387,664 319,701
Current liabilities mENEE (32,503) (396,845)
Non-current liabilities FERBAaE (18,737) (16,991)
Net assets BEFE 371,934 300,306
Revenue 25 190,853 264,525
Loss from continuing operations SIBICEEB 2R (93,441) (2,186)
Post-tax loss from discontinued operations BRIEREER 2Bk EE - (22,576)
Other comprehensive income HEt2miA 29,531 3,934
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAEZEEEESR (63,910) (20,828)

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

24. iﬁgﬁ% FHREEB RAEFEH

TIME DEPOSITS LN
2016 2015
—EBE—RE —E—HF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FExT FET
Cash and bank balances Be MEITET 52,691 124,207
Deposits with other financial RE A& B 2 775K
institutions 17.141 8,556
Less: Pledged time deposits BRI E BE R
Pledged for interest-bearing LM SERITIERIEL
bank borrowings 7 26(ii) (269) (1,024)
Cash and cash equivalents HehERIREIEB 69,563 131,739
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
TIME DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$6,207,000 (2015: HK$11,683,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks and other financial institutions with no recent history of default.

25. TRADE PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

24,

25.

e PR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

ReRkERARESEAERBFERAES
BFR ()

RMERERE  AEBUAREHEZERES
N ER1T 4517 # 56,207,000 T (— T — A F:
11,683,00087T) - ARBTAIEBR LK AHME
B AT ARAR AP B b 2 SN 2 {15 K A EE -
EERNEEERT  ANEEM S RERELETT
INEXEB ZIRITBARER I BEMER -

FRRRITZRSBRBRITZEAFRME &
FBHERDAE - ERAEHEZINTF —HE=
BRAAE  DRFAKEZARFREFTEME -
WiRE B 258 HE R FRFEKRRAE - A7 T
T RS B R A BT A0 B3 R iR 85 2 $R1T IR E
o & B o

BNEZERR EWiRERETER

2016 2015

—E—RF —E-AEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Trade payables BB 5 BRI 37,644 83,621
Deposits received B iz & 10,897 7,345
Accrued expenses EztE A 14,111 13,759
62,652 104,725

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

BRENFEHME NEESPRERKEZENES
BRRZRER AT

2016 2015
—E-AF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FHET

Trade payables: e E SRR
Current BN AR 29,110 78,212
1 to 30 days 1£230H 6,381 5,404
Over 60 days HBiE60H 2,153 5
37,644 83,621
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled ENEZERRIIDE S —RN30E90H A4
between 30 and 90 days. The carrying amounts of the trade payables H-ENESERZEESEEA R FEEME

approximate to their fair values.

o
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER . fERITRHEMER
BORROWINGS
2016 2015
ZE-RE “T-1fF
Effective Effective
annual annual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
ERERI= B TEr  EREAX 38R THL
Current e
Import and trust receipt loans - unsecured  EORETMBEER-EEE  1.80% - 2.40% 2016 31,475 1.78% - 2.38% 2015 258,559
1.80%Z£2.40% ZE-RE 1.78%%2.38% “Z-1%
Bank loans - secured ROEH-BER 1.68% - 4.66% 2016 96,005 1.68% - 2.38% 2015 74,752
1.68% £4.66% ZE-RE 1.68%%2.38% “Z-1f%
Other loan - unsecured EER-EER - - - 5.00% 2015 7,744
5.00% “Z-1f
127,480 341,055
Non-current E k)
Bank loans - secured ROEH-BER 4.98% 2017-2027 8,826 4.70% 2016 2027 9,265
“E-tEZ i
ZECtE B 3
136,306 350,320
2016 2015
—E—XF —hHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: RT3 EEAEERE ZIRITER:
Within one year or on demand —FRNPIREK 127,480 333,311
In the second year F-FR 637 761
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BE=FFERF
(BREMFREEN) 2,145 2,281
Over five years B8 A F 6,044 6,223
136,306 342,576
Other borrowing repayable AR —FNEEEMER
within one year - 7,744
Total A&t 136,306 350,320
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Except for certain bank loans which bore interest at rates ranging from
2.87% to 4.66% per annum as at 31 March 2016 and the other loan
which bore interest at 5.00% per annum as at 31 March 2015, all the
Group's bank borrowings bore interest at floating rates at the end of
the reporting period. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their fair values.

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s bank loans
are secured by:

(i) mortgages over the Group’s investment properties, which had
an aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
HK$86,250,000 (2015: HK$90,416,000) (note 14);

(i)  pledge of certain of the Group's time deposits amounting to
HK$269,000 (2015: HK$1,024,000) (note 24);

(i)  pledge of the Group’s equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss amounting to nil (2015: HK$1,777,000) (note 23);
and

(iv) pledge of an available-for-sale investment amounting to
HK$6,745,000 (2015: HK$13,639,000) (note 19(c)).

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

. MYRIRIT R E MG

BRZZE—R"F=ZA=+—BEFMNENT
2.87%%4.66%F B 2B TRITEALR T
—hAF=A=1+—REFHNE5.00% 22 HA
BN R EHEARE  AEE 2B RIT
BRDIRZHAERGFE - AEE 2 S RITRE
HEREESEEEQATEBEES-

N EMHEERE - AREETRITEFTAAT
TR

() AEBZEREMERE EXREHEE
REF 2 BR TH 4218 486,250,0008 T (=&
—F 4 :90,416,000/87T) (FMizE14)

(i) EHAEEEFES269,00087T(—T—Hh
11,024,000 T) 2 & T EHT R (M
24) ;

(i) EBAEEEBAT (T —HF:
1,777,000/ L) 2 BB E=IE A F(EET]
BRZBAEZE (H523) + &

(iv) 4 %8 456,745,000 (—ZE— R4
13,639,000 T ) 2 Al it H &£ 38 & (i &
19(c)) °
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27. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles for the Group’s marketing
and distribution business. These leases are classified as finance leases

27.

EANmERERE
AEERETHRER S HEBEAET AL

SZEEER

DERBERE K THEFHNT

and have remaining lease terms ranging from one to five years. —FERF
At 31 March 2016, the total future minimum lease payments under RIZBE-—RF=ZA=+—B BREREHEZR
finance leases and their present values are as follows: REREERBRBRERBENLT
Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum lease ~ Minimum lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
2016 2015 2016 2015
RIEHEE &EHEE
BREHRERE 1&* EXE REZRE HEZBE
—E-RE —hE —E-RE “ET-hF
HK$'000 HK$'OOO HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET THER FTHAT
Amounts payable: RS BRI FE 1 2 3R
Within one year —FR 325 181 287 160
In the second year F-FR 278 181 250 160
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=ZERF
(ERMFBREN) 374 136 360 120
Total minimum finance lease payments HERERETIAEE 977 498 897 440
Future finance charges ARBEER (80) (58)
Total net finance lease payables ENRERERIEFREE 897 440
Portion classified as current liabilities SBRARBBELHS (287) (160)
Non-current portion ED eI P 610 280
The carrying amounts of the Group's finance lease payables AEEEMNHEHAERBE  RESHEEALNTE

approximate to their fair values.
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28. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATION

29.

During the year, the Group has provided financial guarantees to joint
ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted to those joint
ventures, and the Group will make payments to reimburse the lenders
upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make payments when due.

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of financial guarantee
obligation of the Group was HK$12,866,000 (2015: HK$14,465,000),
based on the valuation from an independent professionally qualified
valuer engaged by the Group, less cumulative amortisation. The method
used in determining the fair value of these guarantees was by reference
to the recovery rate and key financial ratio of the guaranteed entity.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows:

e PR R

31 March 2016 ZE—R"F=A=+—H

28. MIBEREME
FR AEEREGECEERZBETEREER
ZECECERBMBER WXERZERAE
FIHRRREER AR BEBRAEBEFENERK-
RIE—RE=A=1T—H REXEEZEZ
BUBXSERGEMZ BRI EHETE
AEEMBERETZEEDS%EA12,866,000/8
Jo (—ZT—F 4 14,465,000/ 7T ) - R E FE I
SERATFEBEZFENREZERZ2EE 20
Rk FZHLERMED -

29. RIERIBEEE

FR-BEEHBREZZHOT

Depreciation

allowance
in excess of Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
BBAEZ
HERE MEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FHET
At 1 April 2014 RZZ—HFEMA—H 3,310 4,654 7,964
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated ~ F R ALRABIHERZ
statement of profit or loss during the year — JEFEFZTE (Ffi7£9)
(note 9) (1,348) - (1,348)
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated R BE 454 Efb 2 EUERE
statement of other comprehensive income 1} 2 ik FE% 18
during the year - 8,928 8,928
Exchange realignment b 5 % 1 - 1
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZZ—HFE=ZA=+—HK
“E-RFMA—H 1,963 13,582 15,545
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FRNGE, (TN ERA
consolidated statement of profit or loss Bak2RLEHIE (K59)
during the year (note 9) (1,815) 341 (1,474)
Exchange realignment BE 5, E B (25) = (25)
At 31 March 2016 RZB-R"F=ZA=+—H 123 13,923 14,046
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29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 29. EEHEEE (@)
The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of AREBRBAEEAZHAFAHREBEAR
HK$285,546,000 (2015: HK$208,121,000) that are available 285,546,000/8 7T ( —Z — F 4 : 208,121,000/8
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies )R EREBEEESEGER AT ZR
in which losses arose. The Group also has unrecognised tax losses PKFE R A0 A o 7N 5% B B EL fth 3 5 BE A 2 R BE
arising elsewhere of HK$32,607,000 (2015: HK$19,220,000) that will R IAEE B A32,607 OOO?&E (7 — R F:
expire during 2016 to 2021 (2015: 2015 to 2020) for offsetting against 19,220,000/7T) * R —REE T - —F
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets in respect of these losses T-RF: T~ £¢ —\,f—\,i)iU
have not been recognised as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have TFﬁT’F}fﬁiﬁﬂﬂU’E AR A o I 5 5% 5 S 1R T
been loss-making for some time and, in the opinion of the directors, it RELERIREE DR EERIDHEHGEEE—
is not considered probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be BEBHMBAREEA EFUTRAKAIE
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. T8 B 2 AR IR AR B A LA S B0 TR B IR HE 4 o
At 31 March 2016, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax RIZB-—RF=ZA=+—B #ELEEZMEBER
liability (2015: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted GIR Hﬁﬁ%“T&A%ﬁiik[ﬁﬂﬂz}ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ
earnings of the Group's subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. mes WEEARERECEHBEEE(ZT—1
Fo|E) -
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of AR AN B A E AR BRI A5 AR S i 2E A PR S B o
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. |RA
Shares igvi)
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Authorised: VAR
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares 2,000,000,000/%
of HK$0.10 each FREE0.107 T 2 & iEAk 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE:
772,944,419 ordinary shares 772,944,419
of HK$0.10 each BRMEEO. 108t .2 EilAR 77,294 77,294
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

BB ERRME

MMN¢2M6_§*ﬁ$7H7+ A

iﬁ

30. BRAS (@)

Shares (continued)

The movements in share capital for the year ended 31 March 2015

were as follows:

(a)

(b)

On 19 December 2014, the Company and Koh Business Groups
Pte. Ltd. (the “Subscriber”), an independent third party, entered
into a share subscription agreement pursuant to which the
Company agreed to issue and the Subscriber agreed to subscribe
for 61,836,000 shares at a price of HK$0.401 per share (the
“Koh Subscription”). The Koh Subscription was completed on
31 December 2014 and total proceeds of HK$24,796,000 were
received by the Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 11 February 2015,
the authorised share capital of the Company increased from
HK$80,000,000 to HK$200,000,000 as a result of the creation of
1,200,000,000 additional shares of HK$0.10 each, ranking pari
passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

B 4n (&)
BE-—Z-AF=A=+—ALFEZRA%Z
T

(@ R-T-—ME+-A+AE AAREBL

% = 75 Koh Business Groups Pte. Ltd. (FE?B\
A DRI RO RERE B AR
BEITMRE AREREEG,836, OOOHXHX
17 RIEEABETR0.4017E T ([KohRIES
B]) KohRBEBENR =T —WF+=
A=+—B=K MARARCEERSBR
TE 48 5624,796,00075 7T ©

by WER=-Z—FRF-_A+—BBEBZ—B
T EIRFH R - FEIE R EESM,200,000,0000%
BRMEME0.10B T ZRD - ANARZEER
7K #380,000,0007 7T 14 11 Z200,000,000/%8
JL M SEINRDES FEHEARRD A

There is no movement in share capital during the year ended 31 March

2016.

A summary of movements in the Company's authorised and issued

share capital is as follows:

HE_Z

BEENZ

A2

RREVEEMBETRAZEEHMNT -

B RS-

—RNEF=ZRA=+—BILFEREEAR

Authorised Issued and fully paid
EE EETRAR
Number of Share
Number of Share ordinary Issued premium
shares capital  shares in issue capital account Total
(=8¢}
R EE R& EERYAE EETRA RIEER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAL THL FAT
At 1 April 2014 —mFEMA—H 800,000,000 80,000 711,108,419 VAR 434,856 505,967
Issue of new shares IKoh ﬂ%$ﬁﬁ'ﬁ§§
on Koh Subscription Miktn (ExhiE@)
(note (a) above) - - 61,836,000 6,183 18,613 24,796
Increase of authorised share AT BRZANIEM
capital (note (b) above) (£ XHiz (b)) 1,200,000,000 120,000 = = = =
At 31 March 2015, WZZ-1%F
1 April 2015 and ERET—F"
31 March 2016 “E-RFMA-AR
“T-R"FZR=1-H 2,000,000,000 200,000 772,944,419 77,294 453,469 530,763
Share options B R
Details of the share option schemes of the Company and one of its AAR REEF B A A ERERT 2 MBI

subsidiaries and the share options issued under these schemes are
included in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEREIBT BB RN A MR
FE31 °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme adopted by the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “AV Scheme"”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the AV Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including the independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, any person or entity that provides research, development
or technological support to the Group, any non-controlling interests in
the Company'’s subsidiaries, any advisor or consultant to any area of
business or business development to the Group and any other group or
class of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangements to the
Group. The AV Scheme became effective on 3 August 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the AV Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 30% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The total number of ordinary shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the AV Scheme
(excluding any which have lapsed) and any other schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of the adoption of the AV Scheme.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the AV Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after the
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than the expiry
date of the AV Scheme.
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RRFRM B RETE
ARRABRIBREE ([AVETE]]) §ERE A
SEZREEFHEMZABR2EERHERE
BROHe AVET B 2 A B2 EHERBEANRE
= (EREBUERTESE) AEEEMESE R
AEBREHRERIRBZHER AEEEF
RAEBREHTE  FRERMSENEFRAL
HER AARNE AR EMFFERER A
SEEAEBREREBER BRI EHBAAR
ERAELE EBBBEREMERRFEEAE
[ & 4% 5 AT BB AF th B A RO (R ) H At 40 51 SR Bl Y
SEANLT AVFHER_ZE-——FNA=ZBER
BRIFRBUBE ERT - BRI N Z B EH0FERE
R o

B AFFRBAVE B Z M R T R R I 1T
ERAREZRNEME RETFEBEARARARN
ERIR 2 B #1TE B Z30% < RIFAVAH 8] )
AR BEAE A F B TR B Z A8 BEE (1
BREEMNDRRE) BTEE THTZEER
BE - SATBEBEBARRRRMAAVE S B HE
BITEBRZ10% ° AVAT Bl Z BREERBEE
PMEA+ (8 A B AT B AR R T2
ReRHEE  ERNAQBNEREHEZE B
TR Z21% © i3 — TR BB %R E < B
- RIZRR AR K& RS BROR it /£

MARAEE SeTRAESREERRRESE
ZEABE AR LB ERSEIERITE
B2 EGHE AN WA EE A+ =@ A SRR
MARREZRERBIIERATESSHESE 2
ABMEARE 2 BREATREZRGEE BA
ARAB AR Z EBTRG 20.1% @ S4aE
(REARABRMRELBHRZERAE)BA
5,000,000/ 7T BIZEA R A& _FEVS AR R =5t
HEfE

ROBREZEHUNELNR MELET28H A
B BEABARARZSNE BT ZREAR
BE-EREBREZTEMNHEZTEE N
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31. BRESE
Share option scheme adopted by the Company RATRMZBRESE (#)
(continued)
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but ﬁ%ﬂxﬁéZfﬂET HEFET BAELR: OA
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price NEIRMAREREZH BT 2 WmE
of the Company'’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; and ROARFTRMREBEEZHNBBRIAERS AT
(ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares BRIz R EMER 2RSS -
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to RN AR TRHEARBRRESIRRRAE L
vote at shareholders’ meetings. TE 2R
The following share options were outstanding under the AV Scheme FRNRAVETEITE T RITR 2 ERENT :
during the year:
Number of share options
BREHA
The
Company's
Exercise Exercise share price
Name or At Granted lapsed  Exercised  Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price at grant
category of 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share ofshare  date of share
participant 2015 the year the year the year the year the year 2016 share options options options options
HERE
R=2-1% R-Z-AE RERHZ
SREELDER MA-B HEREL REAZN RERETE REAZE MWERER ZA=1-A BRESLAY BREZTES  BREGEE ADTRGER
(both dates HKS HKS
inclusive) per share per share
(BEEERR) AT BT
(BR) (BR)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(GRE) (GED) (Mzc)
Director
iz
S0 Yuk Kian 600,000 - - - - - 600000 13 March 2013 13 March 2013 to 0435 0415
12 March 2018
gy ZF-=£-A+1=A ZE-SE-A+=RZ
“5-\¥=h+ZH
Employees
-1
In aggregate 7,110,000 - - - - - 7,110,000 12 December 2014 12 December 2014 to 0519 0.495
11 December 2016
A% “E-MEr=AtzA ZF-METZATZRE
ZBRETZAT-R
Total 7,710,000 - - - - - 7710000
A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31. BRERE @
Share option scheme adopted by the Company AR TE R Z B RAETE (80
(continued)
Notes: Bt
a. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the a. BRE BB ABREE B BRETEHRRRZ8
commencement of the exercise period. fl e
b. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of b. B 2 ITREARMARSEITAR AR F]
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company'’s share capital. AR A R BR EL A SR S B s T DA B
c The price of the Company'’s shares disclosed as at the date of grant of the share c. FR# B8 2 AN A RIR ) R BB AR AE 2 HE B HﬁZf Y]
options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the date of grant of the options. REEAREIR ) B HA7E B S Fr 2 T (B
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-FEF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
METLITHEE BREZE MEFETEE EREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T
per share per share
(BR) €=19)
At beginning of year F1 0.512 7,710 0.435 600
Granted during the year RERF L - - 0.519 7,110
At end of year FIR 0.512 7,710 0.512 7,710
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by the Company
(continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
March 2015 was HK$1,145,000 and the whole amount was recognised
as other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated
as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used on each date of grant:

31.

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 ZE—R"F=A=+—H

BB 8 ()
KA TR 2 BRAESTE (8)

RBE-T—AF=-A=+T—HILFERLZE
ftE 2 N EEA1,145,0008 70 2HEREE

—RAF=A=t+—RAILFEZHEAERRA
ERAEHMER -

ERNzBEEAERBREQATERLRNELAH
ROEARLGE WEFRZFER D BRE
ZARFR B GR - TRBIIN SR B R R
RAzBAME:

12 December 2014 13 March 2013

—T—fF —T—=fF

+—A+=H =A+=H

Dividend yield (%) % B 2R (%) 0.000 1.032

Expected volatility (%) 8 B R 18 (%) 63.513 56.939

Risk-free interest rate (%) 47 [ B ) 2= (%) 0.499 0.229

Expected life of options (years) TAETHERER BFH (F) 2.000 2.500
Weighted average share price MEFEHRE (BRET)

(HK$ per share) 0.495 0.435

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the
past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 7,710,000 share
options outstanding under the AV Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 7,710,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$771,000 and share
premium of HK$3,180,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Company had 7,710,000 share options outstanding under the AV
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.0% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

i‘ﬁuﬂﬁﬂx%ﬁxﬁliﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ E=F 2L SRR

HWARTABEHIR ZITERER - FRHKIE R
&HQQFE’LBZIPETEET\EH%:E B2 R AR MK
ﬁi'@ému

HEATEER RS BRI 2 BREZ 2 b5
o

A R 45 HE R A5 SR B+ AN A RAVAT BITE T 2 i
RITHEBEALAE A7,710,00010 c E A R BB 2

ARANZEET ﬁiiﬁfﬂfﬁﬂiﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬂx%%%ﬁ
JARAYNEE 177,710,000/ AN A A) @ A% - I E A&
771,ooo,angﬁﬁl\ﬂxzﬁmﬂ80,000%&%2% 7
B (MBRETHAZA)

RELEREGE
T2 MARITEREREA7,710,0001
AIRNZ A B BITRMH41.0% °

MB|MERE A ARARAVET &R
HERAR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary

On 5 August 2013, Koocell Limited (“Koocell”) adopted a share option
scheme (the ‘Koocell Scheme”). Under the Koocell Scheme, Koocell
may grant options to any of its full-time employees and directors and
any eligible persons as defined therein to subscribe for the respective

ordinary shares of Koocell.

The following share options were outstanding under the Koocell

Scheme during the year:

iR ERt 8l (m)

— B E A R RMA 2B ESTE
RZZ—=F /AR A H  Koocell
([Koocell | ) FE#n 5 Az 5T &I ([KoocellzT &) ©
1R ¥ Koocellzt &) -
EE LA K Koocellst EIFT R E 2 R & BB ALE

Limited

Koocell 7] [Al E ] 2 B4 2 B &

o B AR - LASR BB AR FE 2 KoocellE AR

F N BKoocellsH &I T ARITHE 2 BRI T :

Number of share options
BREXA
Granted Lapsed Exercised Cancelled Expired
Name or At during during during during during Date of grant of Exercise period of  Exercise price of
category of participant 1 April 2015 the year the year the year the year the year 31 March 2016 share options share options share options
RZ%F-1% RZF-#E
SREHEIER BA-A REREH REAKH  REREGR REAEE RERER =ZA=t-A BRERLRE BREZORE BREZGRE
(both dates HK$
inclusive) per share
(BEERWA) AT
(8R)
(Note 3)
(Hfita)
Director of the Company
and Koocell
FRRRKoocell 2 EZS
So Chi Sun Sunny (note b) 220,000 - - - - - 220,000 5 August 2013 6 September 2015 to 80
5 August 2023
HE4 (Hib) ZT-ZENARR ZE-REAARAE
“ZZZEN\ARA
Employees of Koocel 45,000 - - - - - 45,000 5 August 2013 6 September 2015 to 80
5 August 2023
KoocellZ B & Z3-Z§M\ARB  ZT-REARARZ
ZR-=£)\AEH
Total 265,000 - - - - - 265,000
At
Notes: (T
a. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the a. BRESEHABREEBBRE/TEHRGZ8
commencement of the exercise period. A o
b. Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny was appointed as a director of the Company on 2 b. BRELEER-_T—AF+—A-BEZEAX
November 2015. ARIESE-

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 &



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —T—XF=H=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31. BRESE
Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary — BB AR RA 2B REST 8 (|)
(continued)
2016 2015
—NE —E-REF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
METLITHEE BREHE METHEIHE EREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T
per share per share
(BR) (B8R)
At beginning and end of year FH R FHK 8.0 265 8.0 265
The fair value of the share options granted during prior years was RBEFERECERBEZATEER
HK$12,453,000, of which the Group recognised a share option expense 12,453,000 L  HFAKBERBEE_Z—
of HK$2,765,000 (2015: HK$5,186,000) during the year ended 31 F=RA=+—RHIEFEEREREMRZ2,765,000
March 2016. ST (ZF— A% 15,186,000/ L) °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary
(continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated as
at 1 October 2013, being the date when the Group obtained control
over Koocell, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used:

31.

BB 8l ()
— R A F AN 2 BB AR ST B (|)

ERLZBRELEBEREATEEDINR - —=
F+A—AH (BAEEERSKoocelliZHliEZ H)
BR-BENERGE YO RZECREHERE
ZIER R TR ZERFAFER 28 A
&:

1 October 2013

—ET—=%+H—H
Dividend yield (%) % B 2R (%) 0.000
Expected volatility (%) J”Eﬁﬁf)ﬂ%(%) 75.500
Risk-free interest rate (%) % 1 2K (%) 2.092
Expected life of options (years) TE ﬁﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁxﬁ(ﬁ%ﬁ (%) 10
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) n#EFRE (FRET) 49.379

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility was determined
by using the historical volatility of comparable companies’ share prices
corresponding to the terms of options from the valuation date, which
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, Koocell had 265,000 share options
outstanding under the Koocell Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure
of Koocell, result in the issue of 265,000 additional ordinary shares
of Koocell and additional share capital of HK2,120,000 (before issue
expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, Koocell had
265,000 share options outstanding under the Koocell Scheme, which
represented approximately 37.3% of Koocell's shares in issue as at that
date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 51 to 52 of the consolidated financial
statements.
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g o

IR &5 B R 45 R - KoocelliAKoocellzt £138 T
2 M A 171 BB A% 4 5265,00017 © 7EKoocel I35 B
ZRRARRET  BEATEE M AT 2 AR i
B 78 58 P8 17265,000% Koocel I3 3 f% + I 2 £
2,120,000/ 70 2 BBANIR AN (F0BRBEFTRA AT ©
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

In the current year, the decrease in investments in joint
ventures amounting to HK$1,599,000 (2015: increase of
HK$8,771,000) was attributable to the recognition of financial
guarantee obligation of HK$27,200,000 (2015: HK$24,147,000)
and the derecognition of financial guarantee obligation of
HK$28,799,000 (2015: HK$15,376,000).

During the year, the Group entered into a finance lease
arrangement in respect of an addition of an item of property,
plant and equipment with a total capital value at the inception of
the lease of HK$704,000 (2015: Nil).

In the current year, the consideration for disposal of an available-
for-sale investment amounting to HK$23,768,000 was settled by
an equity investment at fair value through profit or loss with a fair
value of HK$23,768,000.

In the prior year, the consideration for disposal of a convertible
bond amounting to HK$6,509,000 was included in other
receivables and was subsequently written off.

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

. RERERERME

FEHFREXRF

(a)

REAFE REELEZEERYD
1,599,000;‘%75(:;?*£¢ )i
8,771,000/ L) * B HE SR B 75 1B
R& 1£27,200 000/9&75 (ZZE—h%F:
24,147,000870 ) RXILERMBERET
28,799,000 7T (=& —H % : 15,376,000
B IT) T8 e

RER AEERAE - BRHEEHRE
2B ARHEMEAT04,0008 7T (—E—HE:
EBIZE BERZHEEEITIUAERE
T

RAFE HETHEEREZNRE
23,768,000 T EFARFEEAR
23,768,000 T2 B BERIE AT EET
IR Z B AR EE AT -

RE—FE HETBEKRES 2KE
6,509,000 7T & 51 A H th fE W 3008 - 3R
HBMs-
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34.

150

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34.

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
in the consolidated financial statements are follows:

HAREE
RIS MR REARBREKIEREZ
SABEMT -

2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Guarantees given to banks in connection #EFALPEZEE
with facilities granted to joint ventures R TFIRITZIER 2,287,356 2,438,616

As at 31 March 2016, the bank lending facilities granted to joint
ventures subject to cross-guarantees given to the banks by the Group
were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$2,287,356,000
(2015: HK$1,043,763,000). For the financial guarantees provided to
joint ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted, the
Group has recognised the financial guarantee obligation amounting to
HK$12,866,000 (2015: HK$14,465,000) as a liability as at 31 March
2016 which was disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from
one to ten years. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

35.

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

EXMERH

(a)

ERHHEA
AEERBEFHELFHEES TRE
ME (FEMBRERME14) KRB 2H
EFHENF—E+F -HEZHEK—KT
E2NRERXNRES  LRFREBEER
BITTRAEESEMIEL AR

R-ZFB-—ARF=ZA=1+—0 AKEREHE
HELZAAHCHEZHER T4 H
A2 R K EFURBERID T

2016 2015
—~F —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT F&T
Within one year —FR 5,232 1,396
In the second to fifth years, F_EZFERF
inclusive (BEMEREEAN) 6,712 =
11,944 1,396
As lessee (b) ERAEAMEA

The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff quarters
and warehouses under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to two
years.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

AEBREBELERELZHRAESTHA
EME- -BEIEERER -ARAVEEEZ
HEFHEN T —EMF-

RZE-REF=ZA=+—H AEERE
NETBUHE X EERN T FIFERE 2 KoK
RIEHEFIRLEMT

2016 2015
—XE —e
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —FRN 1,108 1,104
In the second to fifth years, E_EFERF
inclusive (EEMEBEEAN) 828 40
1,936 1,144
AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 G % 151



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

=
%F/\'

= B R AR MR

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

36.

152

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

36. EREALRS
() BREASAMBRREMBLFR2XS
S REBNFNREMEATEST T U

material transactions with related parties during the year: TEARRS:
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—hEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FET
Associates: iRl
Sales of products $HE E W (i) 866 1,186
Purchases of products BEEM (i) 638 1,117
Trademark licence income PIER WA (ii) 389 544
Proceeds from disposal of HE—IEAHEE
an available-for-sale WA B RIE
investment (iii) - 30,000
Joint venture: BEDE:
Sales of products $HE Em (i) 7,065 =
Related companies: BREEAQR:
Sales of products $HE Em (i) 8 =
Rental expense visheal i (iv) 311 778
Notes: B &
(i) The sales to associates, a joint venture and related companies and (i) REE AR —HEe2C¥EREGHEERNA
purchases from associates were made with reference to the cost of EHZHER BB E A RIELH 2 ERET2
products. BEMKARNET

(ii) The trademark licence income from an associate was made with
reference to the actual costs incurred.

(iii) The consideration was mutually agreed in accordance with the terms of
the sale and purchase agreement.

(iv) The rental expense was charged in accordance with the respective
tenancy agreement. The related company is controlled by Dr. So Yu
Kwan, a director of the Company.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group:
The Group’s key management personnel are the executive
directors of the Company, and further details of their emoluments
are included in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 ZE—X"F=A=+—H

36. BEEEALTRE @)

() Commitment with a related party: (0 M—BEBEEALZEE:
On 1 June 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group RZZT—NFARA—RB AEE—HE2EM
entered into a two-year agreement ending 31 May 2016 with BRAE-—HXARRESHEAB L=
SEPL Global (H.K.) Limited, a company which is controlled #ll 2 2 A SEPL Global (H.K.) Limited&] 32 —
by Dr. So Yuk Kwan, a director of the Company, to lease a PR-ZZB—ANFRA=+T—HBRIEZMF
warehouse. The amount of rental expense to SEPL Global (H.K.) A4 LA —RA B o 3 F SEPL Global
Limited is included in note 36(a)(iv) to the consolidated financial (H.K.) Limitedz &R X S EERERE I
statements. The agreement was terminated in the current year. HmARME36@)(VEE -ZpFEERAE
As at 31 March 2015, the Group expected rental expense paid FEKE- RZTE—RF=RA=+—8"
to SEPL Global (H.K.) Limited in the years ending 31 March 2016 AEEBHEREBEE—_T—"FR-T—L
and 2017 to be approximately HK$934,000 and HK$156,000, F=HA=+—HILFE X TSEPL Global
respectively. (H.K.) Limited 2 78 & 7 % 5 5l 49 /934,000
7870 5. 156,000/ JT °
37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. @@MIAZSE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments EHRNeMITARREHEGERKE ZEmSEO
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
2016 —E—REF
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
ERBEERATEBIE
ZEREE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
Loans and upon initial Held for financial
receivables recognition trading assets Total
ERR WMISBRRE TR HE
W BE BHEEE SREE CH
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M FHT FHR FET FET FAT
Due from associates JENEE & N R TUR 18 12,157 - - - 12,157
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE 19 - - - 20,891 20,891
Trade receivables B Z B 21 63,994 - - - 63,994
Financial assets included in prepayments, AABRTE Rk
deposits and other receivables HitRWHE eRMEE 2 9,047 - - - 9,047
Equity investments at fair value through FRBREATEETIR
profit or loss RARE 23 - 60,567 12,427 = 72,994
Cash and bank balances BeRBIER 24 52,691 - - - 52,691
Deposits with other financial institutions REME BEE TR 24 17,141 = = = 17,141
155,030 60,567 12,427 20,891 248,915
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

37. eMITESE @

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments Mo T ARREHRAERK ZREEN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) T (8)
2016 —E-RE
Financial liabilities cRMERE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
2 18 88 B A 51 BR
ZEmBaE
Notes HK$'000
Bt 5% FET
Trade payables FERE SRR 25 37,644
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings B 28R 1T R EL M5 3K 26 136,306
Finance lease payables ERNRERERIE 27 897
Financial guarantee obligation MEREE 28 12,866
187,713
2015 N
Financial assets tRMEE
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BEBBREATERNRZ
SREE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
Loans and upon initial Held for financial
receivables recognition trading assets Total
BREk  RAOSHERE A&
FEIE RE KIEER SREE A&
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FAL FAT TAHT FAL FAL
Due from associates JE B D R FOR 18 20,867 - - - 20,867
Available-for-sale investments A ’%&;ﬁ 19 = = = 90,173 90,173
Trade receivables JEW R 5 R0 21 211,059 - - - 211,059
Financial assets included in prepayments, FABMRE RE R
deposits and other receivables MFELISZ mzm&% 22 31,517 = = = 31,517
Equity investments at fair value through FRBARATEEISY
profit or loss ﬂxZM“é 23 - 85,750 3,414 - 89,164
Cash and bank balances Re RRTER 24 124,207 - - - 124,207
Deposits with other financial institution REMEBEEZFER 24 8,556 = = = 8,556
396,206 85,750 3,414 90,173 575,543
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. €RTEZ98E @)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments BB T ARNRE BEARK ZREEN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) T (#&)
2015 —T—hF
Financial liabilities cHEas
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
RESHR AT BR
ZemEaE
Notes HK$'000
Pt 5E FHEIT
Trade payables ERE SRR 25 83,621
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings B 28R 1T R EL M5 3K 26 350,320
Finance lease payables ERERERIE 27 440
Financial guarantee obligation MEEREE 28 14,465
448,846
TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 38. SRIEECEY

At 31 March 2015, the Group entered into trade receivable factoring
arrangements (the “Arrangements”) and transferred certain trade
receivables to banks with a carrying amount of HK$4,282,000. In the
opinion of the directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks
and rewards, which included default risks relating to the trade debtors,
and accordingly, continued to recognise the full carrying amounts
of the trade receivables under the Arrangements and the associated
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with a carrying amount of
HK$3,647,000 as collateralised bank advance.

RZZE—AF=A=+—RH A£ETEEKEH
SEFREBLE ([ZERH])  THEBERSE
54,282,000 T2 E TIRKE ZEERTFRIT-E
ERE AEERBBABORARKLER  BI1E
ERESEBAZENRR Bt HEEZH
BRZELHETZERESRFEDSBERE
% 58 /3,647,000 7T 2 HEEE M B8R 1T R E A
BRBEEIFRITER
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39.

156

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

39.

EMTAAFEERDFEESR
e

AEESBIA (FALBRATEEA LI
EEBRIN) LEESERATFEEDT

Carrying amounts Fair values
RESE NFEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-REF —T-nfF ZE-RE —T—h#F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT AT TET FHT
Financial assets CRMEE
Available-for-sale investments measured BRATFEEGFEZ
at fair value AHHERE 20,891 74,633 20,891 74,633
Non-current deposits EnEb & 466 491 466 491
Pledged time deposits BEEREHER 269 1,024 269 1,024
Equity investments at fair value BREREATEE
through profit or loss IR 2 R AR A 72,994 89,164 72,994 89,164
94,620 165,312 94,620 165,312
Financial liabilities 5= R
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings  Bff 58817 J E A & 5% 136,306 350,320 136,306 350,320
Finance lease payables ENRERERE 897 440 897 440
137,203 350,760 137,203 350,760

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from associates, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (other
than non-current deposits), trade payables and financial guarantee
obligation approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of non-current deposits, pledged time deposits, finance
lease payables and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
finance lease payables, and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
as at 31 March 2016 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
are based on quoted market prices. The fair value of unlisted available-
for-sale equity investment measured at fair value has been estimated
with reference to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as
average of the enterprise value (“EV”)/earnings before interest and
tax (“EBIT"). The fair values of key management insurance contracts
classified as available-for-sale investments are based on the account
values less surrender charges, quoted by the vendors. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values, which
are recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of the unlisted available-for-sale equity investments
and convertible promissory note measured at cost were not disclosed
because they cannot be reliably measured as the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair values.

e PR R

31 March 2016 —E—X"F=A=+—H

9. EMTANFEERAFEESR

248 (m)

SRMEERABI AVEENEEIARAER
S (MERBRBEARE)ENTH T 2AR
SEBAB - THFERBRNANGEEATE
& :

Fnke FEMAEHMER ENBREHEER
AR B RTEAEMER XA HEBTERASR
LUEF - EERR LS TEHE 2 TAZREH
ERBHRARBESRERRMAE - R=F— X
FZRA=t—RH AEERENREHEENRIA
KM BRITREMERMESE 22 QR E
RAPEK-

FERBHERATFEEIKRZBEANRE Z A FEE
TIRERHBmESE M AFEEAEZIFLT
AHEEREARE A TEED2ETELER -
MARZEE (PINEXEEFHE RIS R
BIER AR ([FREBATEM]) )HE - DEAR
HEEREZTBERABRBRAHNZAFEE
REBRPEEBERFRER (BHETRE)TE-
E=RE FAERNSELEZGEFAFEERE (R
HFAMBARARLE) RATFEEZHBES (R
BRakHEmrmEmEA (HER) L) ReE .
WAREHERERTREEZEE.

BEAE 8 23 E A b ERRARE K A A
AR RE 2 N HEBERTEE R ST E A T3
B REAERSEARNZAMG ZAEETESE
AR AR AR A FEE
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation
of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis

39. SRTAAFEERAFEESFR

88 @

EMITAGMER T R"EE_Z-—HF=H
=t BZEATABERABEREEGRE

as at 31 March 2016 and 2015: AT -
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of
technique unobservable input Value fair value to input
fRE M EXTABRGAE HE DREEHBAEZHRE
Unlisted available-for-sale Market approach EV/EBIT 30.5x 0.1x increase (decrease) in EV/EBIT
equity investment would result in no change
as at 31 March 2016 in fair value
RZZ—RF=H (iR 07 TEEE/BREBAT 30.5x TEEE/RERAEN
=+—RZ¥EMm =l EF (CFB&)0.1x
AfHERARE BAGEL AT EEE
Key management insurance N/A Account values HK$23,976,000 5% (2015: 5%) increase (decrease)
contracts classified (2015: HK$15,594,000)  in account values would result in
as available-for-sale increase (decrease) in fair value by
investments HK$1,199,000 (HK$1,199,000) (2015:
HK$780,000 (HK$780,000))
AERIHEEREZ M RFEE 23,976,000/ 7T BRPEELA (TRE)5%
TZEBABRBRED (ZZ—Hh%F: (ZZ—HF:5%) BEBAT
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Surrender charges

15,594,000/ 7T )

HK$3,085,000
(2015: HK$1,955,000)

3,085,000/ 7T
(ZE—HRfF:
1,955,000/ 7T)

BmEEm (R )1,199,000% T
(1,199,000 7T) (ZE—HF:
780,000/ 7t (780,0007 7T ) )

5% (2015: 5%) increase (decrease)
in surrender charges would result in
decrease (increase) in fair value by
HK$154,000 (HK$154,000) (2015:
HK$100,000 (HK$100,000))

BRER LA (TH)5%
(ZZ—R%F:5%) BEBRT
{BER D (#10)154,000/8 7T
(154,000%7T) (ZF—HF:
100,000 7T (100,000 7T) )
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39. ERMTAEAFEERATFEESFR
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) £ ¢ )
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of
technique unobservable input Value fair value to input
R E B BAFAIHREBAE BE DLEEHGAEZHRE
Unlisted available-for-sale Market approach Revenue multiple 2.8x 0.1x increase (decrease) in revenue
equity investment multiple would result in increase
as at 31 March 2015 (decrease) in fair value by
HK$2,188,000 (HK$2,188,000)
RZZE—hF R W g 8 2.8x Wan S8 T (T RE)0. 15 B 3K
=A=+—Hz2 NFEEE N R )2,188,000
JFEMAIEHE 7T (2,188,000 7T )
RAKE
Discount for lack of 15% 1% increase (decrease) in discount would
marketability result in decrease (increase) in fair
value by HK$564,000 (HK$564,000)
ASHEMT R ITE 15% TEEA(TEN%EERDTERE
w4 (38 41)564,0007% 7T (564,000
BT)
The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of AHEETRITREAEERATIZ2EBENR
premiums and discounts determined by the Group that market REEBEREERZRERTESRE

participants would take into account when pricing the investment.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 G % 159



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

,.\7_]? 7f ﬁ%#&% |Zﬁ

31 March 2016 ZT— X XF=A=+—8H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 30 SRITAATFEERAFEEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BB @
Fair value hierarchy N EEERES
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRINTFHEREERTARTFEECERE
the Group's financial instruments: %
Assets measured at fair value: BAFEEFEZEE:
As at 31 March 2016: R-E—ANF=H=+—H:

Fair value measurement using

FEALEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ER ™ & BRAUEE EBAFUEE
ZHE BAE BAE
(5-18) (5=8) ($=8) A&t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TER
Available-for-sale investments A HERE - = 20,891 20,891
Equity investments at fair value BREREATEE
through profit or loss S8R 2 IR R B 67,986 5,008 - 72,994
67,986 5,008 20,891 93,885
As at 31 March 2015: RZEFE—AF=H=+—H:
Fair value measurement using
FEATEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB BEXABE EATABE
ZHE BAE BWAE
(F—B) (5=8) (=) CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FAET
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE - - 74,633 74,633
Equity investments at fair value BREREATEE
through profit or loss S8R 2 R R B 89,164 - - 89,164
89,164 - 74,633 163,797
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39.

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

EMIENTFEERAFEESER
28 @)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT EEERERS ()
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) EE’D\$1“1E*‘I'§Z§E 1 (&)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the FR-F= NTEEBEFEZEHHOT
year are as follows:
2016 2015
—EB-AEF —ZE-AIF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
At beginning of year F9) 74,633 49,429
Total gains/(losses) recognised RE 2 E U AR Z
in other comprehensive income W2k, (E18) 5 (30,817) 491
Purchases BE 8,181 60,995
Disposals s (31,106) (36,282)
At end of year Fi 20,891 74,633
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as RZEBE-—RE=ZA=+T—BRZ-ZZ—AF=H

at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2015: Nil).

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 March 2016:

=t—H AEEHEEMRAFEEAEZE
MEE-

FRF-RE_BAVEEHEZRLESH

BERTRAGER F=ZENEEOE ANE
H(ZZE—R%F &)

REAFEEZEE:
R-FE-_ANF=ZHA=1+—H:

Fair value measurement using

HEAFRERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

SER ™ BEXUEE EBAFUEE

ZHE BAE BAE
(5-1) (5=8) (5=8E) CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THER THET
Non-current deposits FReEe - - 466 466
Pledged timed deposits BEAEBRER - 269 - 269
- 269 466 735
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 39. ERMTEAATFEERATFEESR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)

As at 31 March 2015:

88 @

AR EESRRESE (2
REATEEZEE: (M)

R-_E—FF=ZF=+—H:

Fair value measurement using

FEATEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BT BRAHE  BAPAEHER
ZHE AR AR
(F—E) (F=E) (=) CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Non-current deposits FReEe - - 491 491
Pledged timed deposits BERATEHER - 1,024 - 1,024
= 1,024 491 1,515
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EREATEEZEE:
As at 31 March 2016: R-E-NEF=ZF=+—H:
Fair value measurement using
FTEATEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
g ] BEAABE EBARFUBE
ZHE BAE BARE
(%5-1) (%5=FE) (5=8) CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT THET THET
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings K 88817 & E A £ 7 - 136,306 - 136,306
Finance lease payables ERNRMERERE - 897 = 897
- 137,203 - 137,203
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40.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)

As at 31 March 2015:

39.

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

EMIENTFEERAFEESER
218 (m)

NP EEFRER ()
REAVEEZAE: (8)

R-F—FEFE=A=+—H:

Fair value measurement using

FSERTEERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BB BRAHE  BEAPIER

ZRE BWAE BAE
(F—) (F=E) (=) CEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT FHET
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings B S8R 17 J E A & 5% = 350,320 = 350,320
Finance lease payables ERBMERERE - 440 - 440
- 350,760 - 350,760

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BERAKREEBEREEK

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, finance lease payables, cash and bank
balances, and deposits with other financial institutions. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from
its operations. The Group is also exposed to market price risk in respect
of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and key
management insurance contracts comprising investment and insurance
elements classified as available-for-sale investments.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market price
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

AEEZIESHTARERSRTREME
R ENBMEBRESRE RERRTEF UER
Hh e s -ZEeRITAZTERS
TRAEEEESRSE - $Elﬁﬁ1ﬂl5ﬂ§%%ﬂ§
ERBE PIEREZRREENE SRR
HEAREEEEERES- $’$l7‘rli§ﬂ?§ﬁé
BAFEEIEZRAKERETEETEABRR
B8 (BRERERREHY YOBERAHEE
&) i I e B E R

rEEeRITAMEEAZEZRR AN ERR -

SNERB - EERR  RBESRRETERE -

§$ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁaﬁxﬂ 2 2 BUR - IREE
TR
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40.

164

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s funding policy is to use short term interest-bearing debts
to finance its working capital requirements and interest-bearing debts
over one year or internally generated resources to finance its capital
investments. The Group borrows mainly at floating interest rates.
Interest-bearing debts over one year will only be considered for capital
investments and under favourable market conditions.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the

40.

B S E bR B TR B R IBUR (@)

MRER
AEBETSHEEDMEE 2 AREBRAS
BEFBF R B2 M BBITEAGM-

FEBZESRRRAE RN SEBRNHSE
BE2BE WA—FUEZHBREBRALELE
BRBNEEARE AKEZERETERTH
MEFE EEREARERERN 2R T
SEBE—FUALEZ2MEER-

= @ﬁfﬁ«%%"%Zﬁﬂmu /ﬁﬁf‘ /Eﬂé (BB

Group's profit/loss before tax from continuing operations (through the BRERZEZE)HFEAEER G EBEH 25
impact on floating rate borrowings). RRJE -
Increase/(decrease)
Increase/ in profit before tax
(decrease) in from continuing
basis points operations
BREREXRZ
2E RRBE A% F
#®m, CEa) #in, ()
HK$'000
F# T
2016 —E—XxF
Hong Kong dollars BT 10 (115)
Hong Kong dollars BT (10) 115
Decrease/(increase)
Increase/ in loss before tax
(decrease) in from continuing
basis points operations
iﬁ‘z« Miﬁ%z
& %Rt A B 1R
i/ CR) wb/ (1)
HK$'000
FHET
2015 —E—RF
Hong Kong dollars BT 10 (343)
Hong Kong dollars BT (10) 343
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk because its business
is principally conducted in Hong Kong and most of the transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar or United States dollar. Since the
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is considered to be minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties,
associates, a joint venture and a related company. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, deposits with other financial institutions,
amounts due from associates, available-for-sale investments, equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, and deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, associates, a joint venture and a related company, there is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group
as the customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

40.

e PR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

B RS E B B TR B A KR BUR (@)

SN LB

AEBYESANNERR RETEREELE
B ERABORZMIABTTHETFE AR
78 7T SR TT N RN SR [ AT R 2 N L B A
BRMTRE-

EEmE
AEERBERTMIEETRZ S5 BEL
A -MAECER-—MAREATRITES-

AEBBRBMEREBENEERIETERELZ
BEFHAKBEERERF WIN BUFIAS
BATHIRFS R B EE - T AN SR [ P B 2 SR AL
Bt AEK -

RAREHEMSREE (BRRERRITESF
MNEAD S BEE 2 7350 U2 QR 3K08 A
HHEERE BREBERRAFEEIKRZRAK
BUARZS REMEKFR)ME FERRE
ROUFEHNMESE KRBESENZETA
ZERE SR

HAASERBERAMEEAEZE =T B
EnR —HEERER—HEMEARETE
B ANBAERR - FERRETEDRER
SRGEF RUBRRTEEE -ANAEE
U E SER 2 TP ERTIERD BN TRZER
RiT# AAEETESEES 2 EERR -

FRAEERERE ZERMER 2 EERRZ
- FPEEDMBIER IR A E B HRRM E213
7o
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AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

40. BIEREEEEREE @®

REBE SRR

REE 2 SR A ER RS MRS RE LR

BN B HPERAT

is as follows:
2016
ZZ-RE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years
1 year or on less than  but less than Over
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—ERH —EHEk WENL
REREE BYRWEF BAREE RENE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TET TET
Trade payables ERE SRR 37,644 - - - 37,644
Interest-bearing bank and BRI REMER
other borrowings 128,096 670 2,258 6,361 137,385
Finance lease payables ERBERERA 325 278 374 = 977
Guarantees given to banks in connection ¥R FAELEZEE
with facilities granted to joint ventures R4 FIR1T ZIER 2,287,356 - - - 2,287,356
2,453,421 948 2,632 6,361 2,463,362
2015
—T-nf
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years
1 year oron less than but less than Over
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—ERH —FE REL L
REXER BAIRRE BIREE RENE CHI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT FAT
Trade payables FERE SRR 83,621 - - - 83,621
Interest-bearing bank and Mt ERIT REAMIES
other borrowings 342,522 973 3,456 7,393 354,344
Finance lease payables ENRERENE 181 181 136 = 498
Guarantees given to banks in connection ¥R FAELEZEE
with facilities granted to joint ventures R FIR1TZ1ER 1,043,763 = = = 1,043,763
1,470,087 1,154 3,592 7,393 1,482,226
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. BEEREREBERBE @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Market price risk ™ E R
Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities 1 Hﬁ?%ﬂx$%a§5l& ERFFEBEKT ZEE
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the BYRAZHFATFEBETHR2EAR - AEERR
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to market price ZE-RE=ZA=T—HOBERBEERAKREZ
risk arising from individual equity investments classified as trading &R IR A®E (i F23) kDB AR HEERE
equity investments (note 23) and key management insurance contracts ZEBZEBEABRBREL (MEE19) MR T E
classified as available-for-sale investments (note 19) as at 31 March BBz NREEKRE S ETHIRE TIR B BT R
2016. Most of the Group's listed investments are listed on the Hong BEILARSHEHE B EREF L ([32E R
Kong Stock Exchange and Korean Securities Dealers Automated F ) B WRRRE B A R PR 2 (B 5t
Quotations (“KOSDAQ") and were valued at quoted market prices at Hih{E -
the end of the reporting period.
The market equity indices for the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and RBEHRRERFFARERL RS A EERHE
KOSDAQ, at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the year ERE REBBIARERBEER 25K
to the end of the reporting period, and their respective highest and RIEE UREBEER B 2ENHZS L REREH
lowest points during the year are as follows: -
31 March High/low 31 March High/low
2016 2016 2015 2015
—-NE —~"E —T-01% —ET-RF
=A=+-H Bs/&E =A=t+—-H &/ &IE
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BAE-BLEER 20,777 28,443/ 24,901 25,363/
18,320 21,680
Korean Securities Dealers REFFRIHEHE 688.38 782.64/ 650.49 651.06/
Automated Quotations BERERLS 608.45 520.89
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40.

168

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% change in
the fair values of the equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss and key management insurance contracts classified as available-for-
sale investments with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit/loss before tax from continuing operations and the Group’s
equity, based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period.

40.

B S E B B TR B R IBUR (@)

{8 B (80)

BEMHEERE ZRESETE  BERERA
FREEJNRZBRARERDERAHEEREZ
TEEBABRRBENZATEESESH%
AEBERBREEBZHRBANERN, R RAE
B R o

Increase/
decrease
in profit
before tax from Increase/
Carrying continuing decrease
amount operations in equity*
RERSEELZ
BB A 32 R *
EESH #&m,/ Wy #m,/ my
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET BT FERT
2016 ZE-XE
Equity investments at fair value BRBERATEEYE
through profit or loss 2RI E 72,994 3,650 -
Key management insurance contracts classified 98 A A] ft H & & 2
as available-for-sale investments FEZEBAESRRBED 20,891 - 1,045
Increase/
decrease
in loss
before tax from Increase/
Carrying continuing decrease
amount operations in equity*
BriiRlE B G i
RES#E #m,/ m #m,/ me
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET TET
2015 —Z-h%F
Equity investments at fair value BRBEZERAFEEYE
through profit or loss ZRARE 89,164 4,458 =
Key management insurance contracts SERAMHHEREY
classified as available-for-sale investments TEEBEAERBED 13,639 = 682
& Excluding retained profits @ T EFERE R F
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is required to comply with certain capital requirements set out
in the bank lending facilities. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
gearing ratio at less than 75%. Net debt includes trade payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and finance lease payables,
less cash and cash equivalents and equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss. Capital represents total equity.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

e IR IR AR R

31 March 2016 ZE—R"F=A=+—H

B S E B B TR B 2 R BUR (@)

EXEHE

AEBERER , TEABRRREASEFEL
BN UHEFREZERLET AXRHHEE
BRFREAZBREE-

REERBEKERAZBEERHEREE R
T’Fb‘jiﬁ% REBEXEHEZHEMRRIRE 2K

AR EE RN BITHIRARIFHAEE
$ EE - AKBEAETRITIERGEEMACET
BERBEE - REBEE_T—R"F=A=1T—HBK=
T-RF=A=+—HILFE rEEEEER
ZAER BRIEFHMEEY-

AEENAEABBLR (EBFHERNERL
BEREA - AEEZBRDBEARFLE
BRRIS%NAT -BEHFRREBRNE SRR

M B RTT R EMERRENBERENER  RE
ERERREREAREBBERIZAFEERIIR

ZEAKRE - BERIE B

NIBEMEERE ZERNBELRWT

2016 2015
—RE —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade payables FEf B 5 BRI 37,644 83,621
Interest-bearing bank and Mt SR AT B E A & K
other borrowings 136,306 350,320
Finance lease payables FEmERERIEA 897 440
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReEMERBEIER (69,563) (131,739)
Less: Equity investments at fair value BB BEEE AT (EE
through profit or loss HIER 2 ARG & (72,994) (89,164)
Net debt B 32,290 213,478
Total capital BB 657,562 654,166
Gearing ratio BARBAELE 5% 33%
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41.

42,

170

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 June 2016, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with IEL, an associate of the Group, pursuant to which, the Group
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and IEL has conditionally
agreed to issue to the Group, convertible bonds at a consideration of
US$2,500,000 (approximately HK$19,425,000). This transaction was
completed on 13 June 2016 and its financial impacts have not been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements. Further details of
the transaction are included in the Company’s announcement on 8
June 2016.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

wREHEEE

RZZT—REANANB  NEBEEER S QR]IEL
FIURERE B ASEAKGREREM
ELEIRHRERAE@METIRRES  RER
2,500,000 7T (#919,425,0007% 7T ) OEIEQ%
ERZE—AR"FANAT=ZAK EFBTEY
ARABREVBERRARB - R P2 HE— %/Fpi\%

ERRARARBA=B—<FAANBZAMH
Ao
42. AR TZMBIRRER

BEAR BT BRI E B A RE 2 B
LINE

2016 2015
—~E T—hHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR ZEE 472,459 488,492
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries JE LB /B R R IR 614 3,269
Prepayments TR IR 87 98
Cash and cash equivalents REFKFRBELEE 935 556
Total current assets mBAERE 1,636 3,923
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEAE
Accrued expenses EztE A 2,475 1,091
Financial guarantee obligation MISHEREE 12,866 14,465
Total current liabilities RE) A EETE 15,341 15,556
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEEFE (13,705) (11,633)
Net assets BESE 458,754 476,859
EQUITY E=
Issued capital BETRA 77,294 77,294
Reserves (note) i (M) 381,460 399,565
Total equity R 4AEE 458,754 476,859
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42, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

43,

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

COMPANY (continued)

e PR R

31 March 2016 —E—R"F=A=+—H

42, ARQTE) 2R RIE (#)

Note: Bt 3 -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: AARZ FEERRET
Equity-
settled
Share share-based Capital
premium payment redemption Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
REEE N
RAEEE ROAREE RIBERREE R ER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FTHT THT T
At 1 April 2014 RZZ-REMA—A 434,856 110 16,142 (15,213) 435,895
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAFBRESE = = = (54,943) (54,943)
Issue of new shares on the Koh Subscription EKohREZEM BT RA 18,613 - - - 18,613
Equity-settled share option arrangements R R R 2 - 1,145 - (1,145) -
At 31 March 2015 and at 1 April 2015 RZZE-RF=A=+—-HK
R=—Z-R&MA—A 453,469 1,255 16,142 (71,301) 399,565
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAEBELE - - - (18,105) (18,105)
At 31 March 2016 R-g-x£=B=1-8 453,469 1,255 16,142 (89,406) 381,460

In accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the Company’s share premium account is distributable in certain
circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 43,

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2016.

RERSHSARE (ZEZMFEEE) - AR
AZBINEERES THBRTA TOIK -

mEMBHRRZHE

REAMBHRERERZZE—RFEAZ+N\HE
ExeftERRENE-

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016 G 171



List of Investment Properties

REYV=BE

31 March 2016 ZE—R"F=A=+—H

Approximate Effective equity
Address gross areas Lot number Lease expiry interest to the Group ~ Usage
AEEEN

3t BHAEE bechi R ERkE B2

HONG KONG

B

Flat 302, 3/F, Block G, Telford Gardens, 603.00 sq.ft. NKI 5744 2047 100%  Residential
No. 33 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

NENEEEFEBRERTECEIE0E 603.00F 77 R NKI 5744 “EELF 100% %

MAINLAND CHINA

HER

Units A-D, 25/F, Noble Center, 1006 Fu Zhong San Road, 1,000.77 sq.m. N/A 2053 100%  Office
Futian District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province

BERE R TR H BB =5 10065 1,00077F 5% @R “TR=F 100% HAE
HEHD2EAZDE

The whole of 28th Floor, Tower One, Neptune Center, 1,088.42 sq.m. N/A 2048 100% Services
Gaoxin District, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province apartments

W)l &R BT EE DL —H2eERE 1,08842F 5k T “EONE 100%  RBEALE

SINGAPORE

T hn 3%

219 Henderson Road, #10-01, 185.00 sg.m. N/A Freehold property 100% Residential
Henderson Industrial Park, Singapore

185.00F 7K TEm KARENE 100% A%
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